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Profile
Hitachi Plant Technologies—Supporting Infrastructure With Environmental
and Energy-Saving Technologies.
Harnessing its engineering capabilities, monozukuri (manufacturing) skills
and project expertise, Hitachi Plant Technologies offers total solutions for
social and industrial infrastructures.
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Forward-looking Statements
This annual report contains forward-looking statements about Hitachi Plant Technologies’ future plans, forecasts, strategies and other matters that are not
historical facts. Such forward-looking statements inherently include various risks and uncertainties. Risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to,
economic conditions, market trends in the industries where we operate, exchange rate movements, and intensifying competition caused by rapid technological
advances. Consequently, please be aware that actual results may differ materially from forecasts.

Financial Highlights
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

		
		
Millions of Yen
(except per share data)

2008

2007

2006

2005

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(except per
share data)

2004

2008

2003

For the year:
¥398,334 ¥363,167 ¥218,212 ¥199,014 ¥189,454 ¥221,311

Net sales

$3,983,340

Operating income

(5,943)

6,483

5,371

3,702

4,265

4,810

(59,430)

Net income

(6,719)

3,008

2,753

2,033

5,131

2,252

(67,190)

Cash dividends paid

2,331

1,856

1,612

1,159

1,178

1,178

23,310

Research and development expenses

5,101

5,588

1,486

1,589

1,706

1,884

51,010

Capital investment

5,990

6,091

814

574

942

1,702

59,900

Total assets

333,358

347,986

196,298

188,802

177,757

187,714

3,333,580

Total net assets

103,703

113,293

69,687

67,175

67,238

63,238

1,037,030

30.5

32.0

35.5

35.6

37.8

33.7

At year-end:

Capital adequacy ratio (%)
Cash flows:
Cash flows from operating activities

8,009

(1,298)

4,655

(6,672)

772

(3,226)

80,090

Cash flows from investing activities

(1,181)

(4,656)

(851)

(293)

(1,159)

(1,082)

(11,810)

Free cash flow

6,828

(5,954)

3,804

(6,965)

(387)

(4,308)

68,280

Cash flows from financing activities

(3,223)

(2,976)

(2,135)

(3,263)

(1,920)

(1,216)

(32,230)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

20,075

16,333

19,782

17,915

28,099

30,578

200,750

Per share data:
Net income
Diluted net income
Cash dividends declared
Net assets

¥ (34.55) ¥

15.50 ¥

22.61 ¥

16.46 ¥

42.67 ¥

17.30

$

(0.35)

—

15.48

22.52

16.43

42.67

—

—

6.00

12.00

12.00

13.00

10.00

10.00

0.06

522.50

573.86

599.58

581.69

576.30

535.25

5.23

Other data:
Return on assets (ROA) (%)

—

0.9

1.4

1.1

2.8

1.1

Return on equity (ROE) (%)

—

2.7

4.0

3.0

7.9

3.6

Debt equity ratio (%)*

17.6

17.0

7.5

8.9

11.2

12.4

Number of employees

7,487

7,393

3,406

3,440

3,514

3,635

Notes: 1. Results for 2003 to 2006 are actual results of the former Hitachi Plant Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. prior to the integration.
2. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥100=US$1, the approximate
exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2008.
* Debt equity ratio = Interest-bearing liabilities ÷ Equity capital x 100
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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

Hitachi Plant Technologies defines its corporate philosophy as follows: “Looking to the future, the Hitachi Plant
Technologies Group will contribute to the creation of
superior value and the emergence of a better world
through offering reliable technologies and services.” In
addition, we aim to become a global company supporting
social and industrial infrastructures by “growing with
customers and society,” “moving boldly toward new
eras,” and “fulfilling our social responsibilities by maintaining strict ethical standards.”
The Hitachi Plant Technologies Group formulated a
medium-term management plan for the period starting
fiscal year 2006 to fiscal year 2010. Fiscal year 2007,
ended March 31, 2008, marked the second year of the
plan. Net sales amounted to ¥398.3 billion, exceeding
the Company’s forecast at the start of the year. On the
earnings side, however, we downwardly revised our
forecasts due to such factors as the contraction of the
domestic public works market, a decline in selling prices
caused by intensifying competition, and the impact of
a steep rise in material costs. Consequently, the Group
recorded an operating loss of ¥5.9 billion, an ordinary
loss of ¥6.4 billion, and a net loss of ¥6.7 billion. Furthermore, we regrettably had to reduce the annual
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dividend per share for fiscal year 2007 from a planned

or where we are highly competitive, such as environ-

¥12 to ¥6. In light of this situation, we will endeavor to

mental preservation and energy saving technologies

streamline and strengthen our business structure and

and systems, while accelerating globalization and

establish a high earnings structure in the expectation

expanding our service operations.

of a rapid recovery in business performance.

In regard to corporate social responsibility (CSR),

First, we are working on streamlining the Group’s

we will not only create economic value, but also actively

management and improving operational efficiency by

promote compliance, environmental conservation,

extensively promoting two kinds of standardization—

safety, and quality in all corporate activities.

standardization of working methods and standardization of products—while attempting to reinforce

In these endeavors, we look forward to the continued understanding and support of all stakeholders.

earnings management. Moreover, by reducing the total
number of Group employees and shifting existing

September 2008

employees to growth areas, we aim to improve staff
productivity, and reduce fixed costs. At the same time,
we are also promoting a policy of selection and concentration for capital investment and research and
development expenditure, and striving to integrate and
streamline operations of subsidiaries. With the aim of

Masaharu Sumikawa

reducing the cost of sales, we are seeking to expand

President and Chief Executive Officer

joint procurement with the Hitachi Group, increase
procurement from international sources, and eliminate
the use of custom specifications.
Furthermore, the Hitachi Plant Technologies Group
is promoting business activities in sectors that we lead
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Interview with the president

Since June 2007, and the advent of the subprime crisis, global markets
have been experiencing severe turbulence. In this business climate,
could you please provide a review of the management environment and
business performance in fiscal year 2007?
The environment surrounding the Hitachi Plant Technologies Group during fiscal year 2007
saw public investment in Japan remain weak, whereas private-sector capital investment was
robust. Overseas, Asia recorded strong economic growth, with countries in the Middle East
also registering favorable economic performance. Supported by these conditions, the Group
posted strong order value and net sales for the year.
On the earnings front, however, we downwardly revised our forecasts due to a number of
factors. Firstly, the domestic markets in which we operate contracted, as was the case with
Japan’s public works sector. Earnings were also adversely influenced by a shortfall in the
recovery of fixed costs due to a decline in order value and a drop in selling prices stemming
from intensifying competition. Secondly, material and labor costs rose sharply and additional
costs related to performance defects increased. In addition, Group allowances for losses on
construction contracts, reflecting new orders for large-scale projects were realized.
In December 2007, the Company paid an interim dividend of ¥6 per share. However, the
year-end dividend for fiscal year 2007 was not declared due to negative results. We are committed to achieving a rapid recovery in earnings, which is why I ask for the continued support
of our stakeholders.
4 Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008

What is the state of progress of the medium-term management plan?
As I mentioned at the start, we downwardly revised our profit forecasts for fiscal year 2007.
We also revised planned targets for fiscal year 2008 and onward.
In such a challenging environment, the Group has undertaken the following two measures
as critical tasks.
Firstly, streamlining the Group’s management
Medium-term Management Plan Targets
Order value, net sales
(Billions of yen)
400

Order value

the associated risks need to be controlled as far
as possible to reduce future business risks and

390.0

increase profit margins.

380.0

370.0

380.0

360.0

350

the recent inflationary pressures from materials and

Ordinary income
(Billions of yen)

398.3
390.4

and improving operational efficiency. We believe

The other critical task we have undertaken is
370.0

Net sales

20

environmental preservation and energy saving,
10

11.0

business activities on sectors in which we hold a
strong position or are highly competitive, such as

15.0
300

business restructuring. We are concentrating our

whilst accelerating globalization, and expanding
our service operations.

5.0

By implementing these measures, we will

0

0

(6.4)

FY07

(Actual Results)

structure and also secure appropriate order value

Ordinary income (right scale)
FY08

(Forecasts)

FY09

(Targets)

create a streamlined and strengthened business

FY10

(Targets)

and sales that put priority on profit margins, resulting in the attainment of projected earnings.

Could you please describe how you intend to streamline the Group’s
management and improve operational efficiency and performance?
To improve operational efficiency and productivity, we are standardizing work methods and
products. Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) is our answer to making project processes more
transparent. This standard will be applied to all projects, including small- and medium-sized
projects. Standardization of products, on the other hand, has been adopted to increase customer satisfaction, by shortening lead times and improving reliability. This will be achieved
through the standardization of components, designs and systems.
Furthermore, to improve project management, we will first need to control material price
inflation risks, labor supply risks, and technical risks at the pre-project stage. Then, we will increase
budgeting accuracy for projected costs and earnings, and also strive to avoid risks in terms of
contract conditions. Accordingly, we will not consider orders for projects that are unlikely to
be profitable. Finally, at each stage of the project concerned, and this includes small- and
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008
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medium-sized projects, we will verify whether the rate of progress and costs incurred are in
line with pre-production plans and budgets.
Next, with regard to improving productivity, we are reducing the total number of Group
employees through a voluntary early retirement program and reorganizing existing employees
to growth divisions.
Another area we will tackle is the selection and concentration of capital investments and
research and development expenditure. In this case, we plan to expand the use of testing
equipment with the aim of shortening lead times for large compressors, which are continuing
to experience robust demand. We will also concentrate investment in a promising new project,
namely the commercialization of a ballast water purification system. We believe this to be a
lucrative business venture.
In conjunction with these initiatives, we will also strive to integrate and streamline operations
of subsidiaries in order to bolster the entire Group’s competitiveness. Recently, we integrated
three companies engaged in water treatmentIntegration and streamlining of subsidiaries’ businesses

related business into two companies and centralized manufacturing to Amagasaki Works. In October

Hitachi Plant Kiden Engineering
Co., Ltd.

2008, we plan to merge two companies involved in

Dissolved

Water treatment & environmental
equipment manufacturing business

Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.

energy-related business, with the aim of strengthening the business structure through integrated
management of design and construction.

Material handling business

To reduce the cost of sales, we aim to expand

Purification equipment business

Hitachi Plant Mechanics Co., Ltd.

procurement within the Hitachi Group, as well
as increase internationally sourced items. Fur-

Hitachi Plant Techno Co., Ltd.

thermore, we aim to eliminate the use of custom-

Water treatment maintenance and
service business

Hitachi Plant Construction &
Services Co., Ltd.

ized specifications.

Industrial wastewater
treatment business
Agricultural wastewater treatment and
composting business

January 2008
March 2008

What specific measures will the Company implement
in relation to business restructuring?
We aim to concentrate on areas of high growth and high earnings.
We are aggressively seeking to maintain or improve our market position in areas where our
Group currently holds a strong market position, by rolling out new and improved products and
systems, such as environmental preservation, energy saving, and energy systems. (For business strategies by segment, see REVIEW OF OPERATIONS on pages 10–17.)
We will also seek to accelerate the Group’s globalization as robust business conditions
continue overseas. By using this momentum as a springboard, we aim to rapidly achieve an
overseas sales ratio of 30%. With that objective, we are striving to increase the number of
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Outline of water recycling business in Dubai

overseas offices and personnel, while
concentrating on key products by region

Wastewater recycling plant

and strengthening cooperation with

RO (Reverse Osmosis)
Membrane

partner companies in each country.
Looking at measures on a regional
Customers

basis, demand is strongest in the Middle
East. We are continuing to expand sales

Wastewater

of mega building air conditioning, large

Storage

Customers

compressors, pumps and chemical plants
for the petroleum and gas sectors. In
Dubai in the United Arab Emirates (UAE),

MBR
(Membrane Bioreactor)

we are collaborating with local partners to
start a water recycling business, with the
core focus on MBR (Membrane Bioreac-

tor) systems. In China, we will mainly target sales for large pumps and compressors, and flatpanel display manufacturing equipment, while in Singapore we will target air conditioning for
large buildings related to redevelopment. Finally, in India, which is a relatively new market for
Hitachi Plant Technologies, we will start by targeting infrastructure-related business such as
water treatment systems.
Furthermore, we expect the service sector to deliver stable, long-term earnings. As a result,
we will expand and upgrade our services operations and network globally. Initially, we will focus
our efforts on the water recycling business in Dubai and chemical plant maintenance in Saudi
Arabia. To achieve these goals, we are fostering a multi-skilled workforce, integrating operations
with group companies and improving information sharing.

Could you please say a few words to stakeholders?
As I mentioned earlier, after careful consideration of our business performance and current
economic conditions, the year-end dividend for fiscal year 2007 was not declared. I sincerely
apologize for this to all shareholders and other investors. Rest assured, we intend to devote
all of our efforts on a Company-wide basis to ensure a rapid recovery in earnings. I ask for your
understanding in this regard.
We are now in the process of adopting measures to deal with the problems and risks that
we have encountered and expect to face in the medium-term. I believe these measures will
contribute to a steady improvement in our business activities and competitiveness, resulting
in the achievement of our numerical targets in the new medium-term management plan. In the
meantime, I look forward to the continued support and encouragement of all stakeholders.

Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008
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At a Glance

Social Infrastructure Systems
Both at home and abroad, we offer total solutions in the fields of social and
industrial infrastructure, including delivery of water treatment and environmental
preservation systems and industrial machinery systems such as pumps and
compressors.

Industrial Systems
We contribute to the improvement of productivity, reliability and safety in a
wide range of industrial fields, which include various processing equipment
and material handling systems in electronics and precision industries, logistics
and crane systems as well as total engineering services for pharmaceutical
and chemical plants.

Air Conditioning Systems
Air conditioning, sanitary, plumbing and electrical systems for factories, office
buildings, and hotels.
Unique “total clean” technologies make it possible to realize clean rooms for
the electronic, biotechnology, and nano-technology fields.

Energy Systems
We have extensive domestic and overseas experience in plant construction
for energy systems. Our engineering expertise, based on optimized CAD/CAE,
proprietary modularized construction techniques, and skilled construction and
safety management are highly acclaimed throughout the world.

8 Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008

Major Products and Services

Percentage of Net Sales

Net Sales and Operating Income (Loss)

(%)

(Billions of yen)
n Net Sales n Operating Income

• Large pumps
• Compressors
• Converters
• Water treatment & environmental
preservation systems

FY07

38.5%

140.3

FY06

FY07

3.7
153.4
–1.8

–50

Major Products and Services

0

100

150

200

Percentage of Net Sales

Net Sales and Operating Income (Loss)

(%)

(Billions of yen)
n Net Sales n Operating Income

• Processing equipment and material
handling systems for the electronics
industry
• Cranes
• Pharmaceutical / Chemical plants
• Chemical equipment

FY07

25.5%

102.8

FY06

FY07

2.6
101.5
–4.9

–50

Major Products and Services

50

0

50

100

150

Percentage of Net Sales

Net Sales and Operating Income

(%)

(Billions of yen)
n Net Sales n Operating Income

200

• Industrial air conditioning systems
• Building air conditioning systems
FY07

22.6%

• Nuclear power plant construction
• Thermal power plant construction
• Dust collection systems
• Hydropower and transformer equipment
construction

3.7
90.1

FY07
–50

Major Products and Services

87.2

FY06

1.5
0

50

100

150

200

Percentage of Net Sales

Net Sales and Operating Income (Loss)

(%)

(Billions of yen)
n Net Sales n Operating Income

FY07

13.4%

FY06

32.7
–0.6
53.1

FY07
–50

1.9
0

50

100

150

200

Note: In the fiscal year 2008 first quarter report (published on July 30, 2008), we reclassified hydropower and transformer equipment as being part of Energy
Systems which were previously included in Social Infrastructure Systems, and food plants as being part of Air Conditioning Systems which were previously
included in Industrial Systems. In this Annual Report 2008, however, figures are presented prior to this reclassification.
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9

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Compressors for large oil refineries

Large water-conveying pumps

Large compressors ordered by the Saudi Arabian Oil Company. Currently,
these compressors are the pinnacle of technology within our Company, with
an impeller diameter of 960 mm and a basic machine weight of 51 tons.
The full-stage use of three-dimensional impellers enables the compressors
to achieve high efficiency and broad operating ranges.

This is the first in a series of four large water-conveying pumps ordered by the
Edmonstone Pumping Station in California in the United States. It is a world-class
unit with a flow rate of 8.9 cubic meters per second, a total dynamic head of
approximately 600 m, and electric synchronous motor rated capacity of approximately 60,000 kW.

Social Infrastructure Systems
Overview of Fiscal Year 2007
Net sales reached ¥153.4 billion despite the effect of curbed public investment and increasingly fierce price competition. This
was due to recovering capital investment in the private sector and good performance for pumps and compressors, primarily
in the Middle East, China, and Southeast Asia. There was an operating loss of ¥1.8 billion, resulted from unprofitable projects
caused by a drop in sales prices for public projects, lower work volume caused by a shrinking of the public sector market in
Japan, and a greater emphasis on profitable orders. As a result, the segment was unable to fully recoup fixed costs.
Medium- to Long-Term Business Strategy
With regard to large compressors, we are endeavoring to become one of the top three
companies in the world, by accelerating development of high-pressure technologies, and
further cultivating the oil and gas sector, where demand is robust.
Demand for large pumps in Middle Eastern and Chinese markets remain buoyant. We
intend to strengthen our international competitiveness and boost sales by shortening lead
times and reducing costs. At the same time, we will expand collaboration with Hitachi
Pump Manufacture (Wuxi) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary in China.
For water treatment and environmental preservation systems, our objective is to expand
sales overseas and the industrial-use market in Japan. In the Middle East, with the core
focus on our competitive Hitachi membrane bioreactor systems, we intend to start up a
water recycling business in collaboration with a local partner. Our other aims are to rapidly
commercialize Hitachi ballast water purification systems and accelerate the development
of systems for purifying water discharged during the extraction of oil from oil sand.

Net Sales

153.4

147.0
135.0

141.0

150

100

50

0

FY07

FY08

(Actual result) (Forecast)
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200

(Billions of yen)

FY09

FY10

(Target)

(Target)

Sewage treatment plants and systems
We installed all the machinery and electrical equipment for five sewerage
plants (one is a sludge treatment plant) in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. One
plant incorporates our advanced sewage treatment system using immobilization microorganisms.

TOPICS
Delivery of Ultra-low-temperature Centrifugal Compressor for LNG
As substances such as carbon dioxide gas and sulfur can be removed in the liquefaction
process of LNG (liquefied natural gas), LNG has been experiencing year-on-year growth in
demand as a source of clean energy.
Hitachi Plant Technologies has advanced technologies that are required in ultra lowtemperature centrifugal compressors, which are used in LNG receiving and off-loading
terminals for LNG bases and facilities. These advantages enable it to play a greater role in
a growing LNG market. In July 2007, we delivered two compressors (3,500 kW x 10,500
rpm) to an LNG plant in India.

Ultra-low-temperature centrifugal compressor
for LNG

In addition to using highly efficient impellers, we standardized components, structures, and systems and have achieved greater efficiency, higher reliability, and shorter
lead times.

Hitachi Ballast Water Purification System Obtains Basic Approval from IMO
The Hitachi Ballast Water* Purification System developed jointly by Hitachi Plant Technologies and Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Ltd. obtained basic approval (an environmental safety
examination of disinfectants used at the time of treatment) from the International Maritime
Organization (IMO) in April 2008.
In addition, Hitachi Plant Technologies started shipboard testing on Yuyo, an
LPG tanker built by the Nagasaki Shipyard & Machinery Works of Mitsubishi Heavy
Industries and owned by Yuyo Steamship Co., Ltd., from April 2008, and the
testing is scheduled to last approximately one year.

Shipboard testing
equipment

After successful testing, and obtaining final approval from several related
organizations planned in July 2009, we intend to aggressively market this new
technology to the global market.

Yuyo, the LPG tanker loaded with
onboard testing equipment

* Ballast water: Seawater employed as weight (ballast) for the purpose of balancing a cargo ship. As ballast water drawn at one
port contains bacteria or small sea life, which are alien to another port when it is discharged, this has raised concerns about
possible damage to marine ecosystems.

Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008
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Vacuum assembling system

Stacker cranes for LCD Panels

This high precision system adheres large panels in a short period of time.

Stacker cranes for efficient transport within a process or between adjacent
processes.

Industrial Systems
Overview of Fiscal Year 2007
This segment posted sales from large projects for material handling systems for the electronics industry, as well as steady support of industrial plant systems from private sector capital investment. However, due to a decrease in orders for electronics
industry manufacturing equipment, caused by a temporary market contraction, this segment recorded net sales of ¥101.5
billion. There was an operating loss of ¥4.9 billion due mainly to allowances for construction contract losses, reflecting new
orders for large-scale material handling system projects. Furthermore, a drop in work volume from order period extensions and
a failure to win orders for large industrial plant system projects resulted in the segment also being unable to completely recoup
fixed costs for the year.
120
Net Sales
Medium- to Long-Term Business Strategy
Regarding manufacturing equipment and material handling systems for the electronics
industry, we are focusing on strengthening and expanding our market position in the flatpanel display sector, where we already boast the largest market share of the world market.
In addition, we intend to rapidly develop and launch new products and systems that cater
to changing market needs.
In the industrial plant business, we aim to expand profitable orders, centered on
our original process technologies. In the case of chemical plants, we will expand our
proprietary process licensing business, bolster our product lineup, and strengthen
operations pertaining to production of specialized chemical equipment by leveraging
our manufacturing technologies.

(Billions of yen)

101.5
83.0

84.0

83.0

90

60

30

0

FY07

FY08

(Actual result) (Forecast)
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FY09

FY10

(Target)

(Target)

Chemical plants
We offer a wide range of engineering services from
process development to high quality manufacturing
plants.

Pharmaceutical plants
Based on our vast experience in fermenter/bioreactor manufacturing and stateof-the-art bioreactor simulation technologies, we offer biopharmaceutical plants
with high productivity and quality.
For solid dosage form production plants, our next generation pharmaceutical
manufacturing systems incorporating “Lhoest Concept” is not only capable of
conforming to global GMP standards, but also reducing operational costs with its
highly efficient material handling system.

Reactors for chemical
plants
We manufacture reactors and vessels made of titanium, or other
corrosion resistant materials.

TOPICS
Buoyant Sales of Screen Printers in China and Southeast Asia
Robust sales of screen printers in China and Southeast Asia due to buoyant conditions in
the printed circuit board mounting industry, stem from growing demand for products such
as flat-screen TVs, PCs, and mobile phones.
Nanjing Hitachi Techno Co., Ltd., a Chinese subsidiary, is engaged in manufacturing,
selling, and providing after sales service for screen printers in China. In addition to strengthening manufacturing and sales systems at Nanjing Hitachi Techno, Hitachi Plant Technologies is actively boosting sales by introducing new models that feature high rigidity,
accuracy and speed.

View of Nanjing Hitachi Techno Co., Ltd. factory.

Screen printers are a general-purpose product in the electronics sector. As such, we
have positioned them as a strategic product for cultivating new customers, as we believe
they will lead to further orders of electronics manufacturing equipment.

Expansion of Pilot Plant Functions for Demonstrating Plastic Manufacturing
Processes
Hitachi Plant Technologies has a full-fledged pilot plant that is able to conduct demonstration experiments for plastic manufacturing processes at the Kasado Works in
Kudamatsu, Yamaguchi Prefecture. Naturally, the Company also uses the plant for joint
research with customers.
Recently, we upgraded this pilot plant and substantially expanded its capabilities to
enable it to demonstrate bioplastics* and other manufacturing processes.
This demonstration and R&D facility has three levels with a width of 8.5 meters, depth
of 13.5 meters, and height of 10.5 meters. It incorporates an original reaction device based
on the Company’s ultra-high-viscosity liquid processing technology and can investigate and
demonstrate manufacturing processes for various kinds of plastics, as well as collect data
for use in scaling up to full-scale plants. Recently, we conducted joint demonstration testing
with a major domestic chemical manufacturer and succeeded in obtaining related orders.
* Bioplastics: Plastics that have recently attracted attention as a measure to resolve environmental problems such as global
warming. Polylactic acid is a well-known example.

Demonstration facility

Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008
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Precision environment
chambers

Clean rooms for the electronics industry
Super-clean rooms are essential for semiconductor and flat panel display
production lines.

Dry clean room systems

A chamber that controls the temperature within ±5/10,000 ºC, is widely
used for precision processing.

Dry clean technology produces an
environment with super low-humidity
that can reduce levels of atmospheric
moisture down to 1/1,000,000.

Cell-processing unit facilities
for regenerative medical care

Ion transportation
discharge device

This facility, using bio-clean room
technology, biohazard technology
and air flow/pressure control technology is essential for regenerative
medical care.

This device removes static electric
buildup from manufacturing processes
in electronics and high-precision fields.

Air Conditioning Systems
Overview of Fiscal Year 2007
Net sales of ¥90.1 billion were strongly supported by orders from the Middle East and Asia, while private sector capital investment was robust for clean rooms in Japan. Operating income was lower than the previous year, at ¥1.5 billion, largely as a
result of additional costs rising from installation defects.
Medium- to Long-Term Business Strategy
We will leverage our total clean technologies to capture a greater market share for clean
rooms and take aggressive steps to identify demand in building facilities and renovation
services in Japan and overseas.
With regard to industrial air conditioning systems and clean rooms, we will focus sales
efforts related to flat-panel display production, which shows strong underlying demand. Furthermore, we aim to boost sales of clean rooms and management systems for regenerative
medical care, a market that is projected to see rapid growth, and accelerate development of
super-energy-saving air conditioning systems for data centers.
Regarding air conditioning systems for buildings, we will expand sales predominantly
in the Middle East and Singapore, where investment is robust and we have built up an
extensive track record. In the Middle East, we will bolster cooperation with partner companies to act as a spring board for entering surrounding countries the Abu Dhabi market,
following on from our successful move into Dubai, U.A.E.

Net Sales

120

(Billions of yen)

90.1

90.0

95.0
88.0

90

60

30

0
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FY09

FY10

(Target)

(Target)

Facilities for large multi-purpose building
We are constructing the air conditioning, plumbing, electrical and building management system as well as the emergency measures, for the
Dubai Burj Tower (projected height of 800 m), a large multiplex building
in U.A.E.

TOPICS
Strong Orders for Large-Scale Building Facilities in the Middle East
The Company has been receiving strong orders for large building facilities in the Middle
East, primarily in U.A.E.
In U.A.E., construction of facilities for the Dubai Burj Tower, which will be the world’s
tallest building with 160 floors and a projected height of 800 meters, is currently proceeding
smoothly. In addition, we have won successive orders for facilities for the Princess Tower,
the world’s tallest condominium building with 108 floors and a height of 414 meters, the Al
Mas Tower, the Gateway Tower, and the Palm Jumeirah monorail station building, as well
as the Emiri Terminal at New Doha Airport in Qatar.

Bird’s eye view of Princess Tower

We aim to expand orders further by establishing a new representative office in the Emirate
of Abu Dhabi (U.A.E.) and strengthening collaboration with local partners.

Development of a Highly Sensitive, Highly Efficient Biosensor
Bio-clean rooms are employed for researching regenerative medical care and other applications. Biosensors monitor and check if microorganisms in the room are below a specified
numerical value.
In conjunction with Hitachi, Ltd.’s Central Research Laboratory, Hitachi Plant Technologies developed a microorganism counting unit that can measure the number of microorganisms with a high degree of sensitivity and efficiency. This is achieved by infusing the ATP
(Adenosine Tri Phosphate) within the cells of microorganisms with a reagent and measuring
the amount of luminescence given off.
This device has the advantage of being about 100 times more sensitive than
previous methods and being able to perform counting within one hour. In the

Collection unit

future, we intend to boost sales to research organizations associated with regenerative medical care as well as pharmaceutical and food processing plants. This
should also lead to orders for bio-clean rooms that integrate this device.
Analysis unit
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Nuclear power plants
We deliver services related to the
construction of core systems in
nuclear power plants such as reactors,
turbines and generators, and we
provide both HVAC design and installation. Our engineering capabilities,
based on optimized CAD/CAE, proprietary gigantic
modularization construction techniques using super
heavy lift cranes, skilled construction management, and
safety management are highly acclaimed.

Three-dimensional CAD systems

Gigantic module

Using advanced CAD systems, we can perform
everything from layout planning for machinery
and piping to detailed design, transportation,
and construction planning, as well as module
plans for nuclear power plants. Such plans can
be created with high precision in a short period
of time.

Energy Systems
Overview of Fiscal Year 2007
Net sales increased to ¥53.1 billion, based on sales derived in Japan from operations such as maintenance inspections of
nuclear plants, sales booking of a large overseas thermal power plant construction project and a revision in the scope of workin-progress accounting methods. Operating income of ¥1.9 billion, was higher than the previous year due to the absence of
compensation costs incurred for products with variations, a significant factor in the previous fiscal year, and an increase in work
volumes enabling the recoupment of fixed costs.
Medium- to Long-Term Business Strategy
Going forward, we will continue working on nuclear power construction projects in
Japan, which are yet to peak. Furthermore, while focusing sales efforts on global
expansion, we will further refine construction technologies such as the megablock
construction method.
Regarding thermal power and hydroelectric power plants, we will utilize our proprietary
jack-up construction method to expand our overseas thermal power plant operations and
seek to increase hydroelectric-power-related orders in Venezuela, where we have an
extensive track record.
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FY09

FY10

(Target)

(Target)

Dust collection systems
These systems function as precipitators that effectively capture dust. By
enhancing their performance, we have made these systems more
compact.

Thermal power plants
We deliver services related to the construction of thermal power plant core systems
such as boilers, turbines, generators, and other major equipment for thermal power
plants. We are endeavoring to develop and commercialize new technologies such as
the jack-up construction method. Pictured above is the Kogan Creek coal-fired thermal
power station in Australia. Hitachi Plant Technologies is in charge of installing the turbines
and generators.

TOPICS
Favorable Progress in Construction of the Shimane Nuclear Power
Station’s No. 3 Unit for The Chugoku Electric Power Co., Inc.
Construction work for The Chugoku Electric Power Co., Inc., aimed at bringing its
Shimane Nuclear Power Station’s No. 3 unit (advanced boiling water reactor, rated
electric power output of 1.373 million kW) into operation by December 2011 is
currently progressing well. The Hitachi Group is entirely responsible for the nuclear
reactor and turbine power generation equipment at this plant, while Hitachi Plant
Technologies is carrying out the construction work for this equipment.
With regard to construction, based on our close relationship with Hitachi-GE
Nuclear Energy, Ltd., we are endeavoring to expand the application of the large
block module construction method, in addition to the use of IT in construction work
planning and management. Looking ahead, we intend to apply this method to the

No. 3 unit of Shimane Nuclear Power station
under construction

construction of overseas nuclear power plants as well.

Licensing of Technology for Moving Electrode Type Electrostatic
Precipitator to Precipitator Manufacturer in China
In October 2007, Hitachi Plant Technologies signed a technical licensing agreement
related to its moving electrode type electrostatic precipitator, with Enelco Environmental Technology (Anhui) Co., Ltd. of China. The license is for design, production,
and construction technology information as well as manufacturing, sales, and usage
rights within China.
In its eleventh Five-Year Plan, announced in 2006, the Chinese government made
environmental measures a national priority, and regulations on dust emissions are
likely to continue to be strengthened. As a result, moving electrode type electrostatic

Signing ceremony

precipitators that offer high dust-capturing efficiency, as well as being energy-efficient
and compact, are expected to see increased demand.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

For Hitachi Plant Technologies, the bold declarations that “We contribute to the emergence of a better world” and
that “We fulfill social responsibilities, by maintaining strict ethical standards” are integral to our management philosophy and vision.

Management Philosophy

Reinforcement of CSR Activities

Looking to the future, the Hitachi Plant Technologies Group
will contribute to the creation of superior value and the
emergence of a better world through offering reliable technologies and services.

Sustained improvement of brand value

Creation of economic value

Management Vision
Become a global company supporting social and industrial
infrastructures
• Grow with customers and society
• Move boldly toward new eras
• Fulfill social responsibilities by maintaining strict ethical
standards

s 3ECURE AND RETURN PROFIT IN A FAIR MANNER
s #ONTRIBUTE TO SOCIETY THROUGH
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

CSR
Compliance

s "OLSTER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
)NTERNAL CONTROL

Quality
Safety

CSR Activity Policy of Hitachi Plant Technologies Group
Activity targets are determined along with the common policy
of Hitachi Group.
Specific activities are implemented for each of the following
eight activity policies:
1. Commitment to corporate social responsibility
2. Contribution to society through our business
3. Disclosure of information and stakeholder engagement
4. Corporate ethics and human rights
5. Environmental conservation
6. Corporate citizenship activities
7. Working environment
8. Responsible partnership with business partners

Environment

Highlighted CSR Activities
CSR Caravan
Continuing efforts begun last year, the CSR Group visited a total of 30 sites
across Japan during fiscal year 2007, including business sites and Group companies, holding CSR study sessions attended by roughly 1,200 employees. The
CSR Group fielded opinions and input from a number of people, noting a greater
overall understanding of CSR among employees compared to the previous fiscal
year. Because of the overwhelmingly positive response thus far, the CSR Group
is planning to upgrade its program content for fiscal year 2008.
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s 3TRENGTHEN AND ENHANCE ORGANIZATIONAL
FRAMEWORK AND SYSTEMS
s %DUCATION AND AWARENESS RAISING

s &ORMULATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
s 0UBLISH #32 REPORTS

Social contribution

s )NITIATE ACTION ON BOTH
CORPORATE AND INDIVIDUAL LEVELS

Start of “Mottainai Project”
Hitachi Plant Technologies launched the
“Mottainai Project” after realizing that many of
the items being discarded in-house could actually be reused. As a first step, the Company
partnered with EPARTS, a Japanese NPO, to
promote the reuse of older PCs, donating eight
PCs to a local group that conducts community
activities. This was followed by the Head
Office’s participation in the “Ecocap Movement,”* which was already under way at certain
Group companies thanks to initiatives by
employees, further widening the scope of
Hitachi Plant Technologies’ commitment to
curbing wasteful habits.

Comments from social welfare group “Shibuya Nakayoshi Group” on
donations from Hitachi Plant Technologies

Representatives from NPO EPARTS
and Shibuya Nakayoshi Group

We would like to sincerely thank Hitachi
Plant Technologies for donating their preowned PCs to us. We’re making the most
of this gift, using the PCs to keep daily logs
of our activities and give users access to
music and video content. This donation has
been very valuable to our organization, and
we hope to use the PCs to conduct even
more activities in the future.

* Ecocap Movement: a social contribution activity whereby plastic bottle caps are collected and recycled.
In addition to helping to lower CO2 emissions, proceeds from the sale of the caps are used to deliver
vaccines to children across the world.

Developing “HPT School” Across Japan
Hitachi Plant Technologies has launched a common social contribution program for the entire Group. Called “HPT School,” this project
is designed to utilize the Group’s range of technologies to help children enjoy learning about the environment and science. Each business site across Japan takes advantage of its distinctive characteristics to sponsor its own unique “HPT School” classes.
Tsuchiura School
(Tsuchiura Works)
August 2007 (14 participants)
Manufacturing class
Grade: Junior high school

Hokkaido Eco School
(Hokkaido Eco Recycle Systems Co., Ltd.)
July 2007 (60 participants)
Eco Recycling Class
Grades: Junior high/High school

Matsudo School
(Matsudo Research Laboratory)
May and September 2007 (318
participants)
Love the Earth class
Grade: Elementary school

Sano School
(Sano Works)
June 2007 (83 participants)
Manufacturing class
Grade: High school

Tokyo Eco School
(Tokyo Eco Recycle Co., Ltd.)
May and August 2007 (11 participants)
Eco Recycle class
Grades: Elementary, junior high and high school

Amagasaki School
(Amagasaki Works)
February 2008 (69 participants)
Amagasaki Explorers
Where water comes from, where it goes
Grade: Elementary school

Ikebukuro School
(Head Office)
August 2007 (80 participants)
Love the Earth class
(Event for Toshima Eco-Life Fair)
Grade: Elementary school

Newly Established Outstanding Service Recognition Systems
Hitachi Plant Technologies established the following two systems to recognize employees for their social accomplishments outside the
Company. Awards under each system were handed out twice during fiscal year 2007.
(1) Special President’s Award: Nominees for this award are
decided on once a year, with the award given to individuals or
groups that perform remarkable feats in sports, lifesaving or
volunteer activities.

(2) Financial support for acts deemed beneficial to the public
interest: Under certain conditions, Hitachi Plant Technologies
provides monetary assistance to employees participating in
sports and other international and national-level competitions.
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Research and Development

By advancing the core technologies of “engineering capabilities,” “monozukuri (manufacturing) skills,” and “project
expertise,” we are developing world-class technologies and products.
In order to speed up the cycle of R&D to solutions, we are actively promoting joint research with customers and
academic institutes as well as the R&D division of Hitachi Group.
Research and development system

Research and Development Group

Research and Development Division

Collaboration

Business Development Division
Matsudo Research Laboratory
Tsuchiura Research Laboratory

Hitachi Plant
Technologies,
Ltd.

Central Research Laboratory
Advanced Research Laboratory

Hitachi, Ltd.

Hitachi Research Laboratory
System Development Laboratory
Mechanical Engineering Research Laboratory
Production Engineering Research Laboratory

Development divisions of
business operations

Power & Industrial System R&D Laboratory

Core technologies supported by Hitachi Plant Technologies Laboratories
Common areas

Industrial plants

• Numerical simulation technology
(fluid, heat, structure, etc.)
• Digital control technology
• Technology to evaluate strength
reliability

• Powder transport technology
• GMP certified cleaning and
sterilization technology
• Plant production simulation
technology
• Micro-reactor application
technology
Clean room thermo-fluid analysis

Centrifugal compressor flow analysis

Micro-reactor
(micro-process server)

Industrial machinery system

Water treatment/Environment

• Technology for improving
performance of turbomachinery
• System control/measurement
technologies
• High-speed rotation technology
• Machine monitor/diagnosis
technology
• 3D geometry measurement
technology

• Microbe immobilization technology
• Membrane treatment and
application technology
• Crystallization technology
• Bio-remediation
• Technology for treating exhaust
gas, waste liquid, and refuse
• Technology for recycling and
zero-emissions

Model impeller made
with rapid prototyping

Impeller turbulent flow
analysis

Wireless sensor and remote
monitoring system

Mechatronics

Rationalized construction

• High speed application technology
• High accuracy positioning
technology
• Super-fine image processing
technology
• Unmanned transport technology
• Logistics technology

• Jacking and lifting technology
• Power assist technology
• Three-dimensional measuring
technology
• Project management system

Unmanned transport vehicle
for semiconductors
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Simulation of stacker crane

Membrane treatment
system for wastewater

Power assist
lifting test unit

R&D collaboration with customers
Matsudo Research Laboratory

Tsuchiura Research Laboratory
Customers
Hitachi group
Government offices
and universities

Issue selection

Theme determination

Research and development

1st research building (Matsudo)

Clean techno-center (Matsudo)
Joint research facility for clean room
technology

Joint research facility for environmental,
biological, food, pharmaceutical, chemical,
process and mechatronics technologies

Solution

Prototyping shop (Tsuchiura)

Research facility for turbomachinery

Air conditioning system
• Cold air distribution system
• Noise-control of air-conditioning
facilities
• Hospital air conditioning facilities

Sealed container transport
system (docking station)

Polymer plant testing
equipment

Cold air distribution system testing
equipment

Outdoor noise simulation

Air flow visualization test

Clean room testing facility

DNA analysis unit

GC/MS

Total clean technology
•
•
•
•
•

Super clean room technology
Bio-clean room technology
Bio-aerosol control technology
Dry room technology
High precision temperature control
technology

Micro-organism activation evaluation
system

Analysis, Evaluation, and
Assessment
• Environmental trace analysis
• Clean room-related contaminant
analysis and evaluation
• Soil purification treatability

Construction management system
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Monozukuri (manufacturing)

Hitachi Plant Technologies continues to strive for the best monozukuri (manufacturing) skills in the world. Through
integration of excellent technological capabilities supported by a wealth of experience and achievements with
advanced equipment and the superb skills of engineering staff, we can provide total solutions by creating key components for various plants and developing unique construction technology.

Production shop for large machines
Our systems are capable of machining items weighing up to 1,000 tons.
Our advanced production systems can offer a wide variety of small lot
production.

n Effective use of monozukuri (manufacturing)
skills and its synergistic effects
• Upgrading of monozukuri and core technology
• Balancing work loads between factories
• Expand internal manufacturing and promote streamlining

Handing down skills
We have established a system in which the skills of
our senior employees are handed down to younger
staff members through comprehensive training conducted by our qualified engineering staff. We were
presented with a gold medal at the 2005 WorldSkills
Competition (CNC machining category).

• Improve technological levels through education and
training

n Reinforcement of project management capabilities and construction engineering capabilities
• Establish optimum construction technology
Plant construction streamlining activity, development of
streamlined methods and tools, and establish fundamental
technology database

• Training project managers
• Nurturing and training expert engineers

Training expert engineers
We implement practical training to develop “discerning abilities” and “engineering abilities.”
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Top-level skills
Fine adjustments up to 1/1,000 mm are possible using our state-of-the-art
technology and expertise. An employee wins a national welding
competition.

Amagasaki Works

Ryugasaki Works

Major products
• Water treatment equipment

Tsuchiura Works

Striving for the World’s Best

Monozukuri
(Manufacturing)
Network

Major products
• Electronics manufacturing equipment

Sano Works
Major products
• Large pumps   • Compressors

Kasado Production Control Division

Major products
• Transport equipment   • Cranes

Major products
• Chemical plant equipment

Liaison
• Manufacturing divisions of Hitachi
• Hitachi group companies
• External engineering organizations
• Universities
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Corporate Governance

(1) Corporate Governance Policy

(2) Status of Corporate Governance Framework

1) Basic Philosophy Regarding Corporate Governance
Hitachi Plant Technologies has strengthened its competitive
position in Japan and overseas by adopting the Committee
System to reinforce corporate governance. The transfer of
considerable authority from the Board of Directors to executive officers has expedited management decision-making and
clarified responsibility for execution of business operations.
Furthermore, we have established Nominating, Audit and
Compensation committees, which have a majority of external
directors, to strengthen and upgrade the supervision function
in order to realize highly transparent management. In addition,
we have taken initiatives to ensure internal controls in business
execution by establishing the Internal Auditing Office, the
Compliance Division, and other special units.

1) Organizational Operation
Auditing
Matters Regarding the Independence from Executive Officers
of Employees Assigned to Assist the Audit Committee
1. The Board of Directors Office supports the duties of the
Audit Committee and other committees, as well as those
of the Board of Directors.
2. One or more employees serve in the Board of Directors
Office and work independently of the executive officers.
3. In addition to those in the Board of Directors Office, employees who serve in the Legal Affairs Group, the Secretary’s
Group, the Internal Auditing Office, the Human Resources
Management & Development Division, and the Finance Division also assist the Board of Directors and its committees.
4. Personnel reassignments in the Board of Directors Office
will be made by making an advance notice, along with a
statement explaining the reason as needed, to the Audit
Committee. The reassignment can then be submitted to
the executive officer in charge of the Human Resources
Management & Development Division.
5. When a disciplinary action is taken against an employee
who serves in the Board of Directors Office, the executive
officer in charge of the Human Resources Management &
Development Division must obtain approval of the Audit
Committee in advance.

2) Implementation of Corporate Governance Initiatives
• As of March 31, 2008, the Board of Directors comprises
eight directors, four of whom are external directors. The
Board makes decisions on items in conformity with laws
and regulations and the articles of incorporation.
• The Audit Committee meets once every month, in principle,
and supports the Board of Directors in its supervisory functions. The Nominating and Compensation committees meet
as required.
• A separate Board of Directors Office has been established
to assure smooth functioning of the Board of Directors and
its committees. The office is managed by employees who
work independently of the executive officers.
• The Internal Auditing Office conducts internal audits to
confirm that the Group’s internal control systems are adequate and effective. The Compliance Division is responsible
for education, auditing, and guidance on compliance issues
at Hitachi Plant Technologies and Group firms to ensure
that all corporate activities are in conformity with laws and
regulations and corporate ethical standards.
The Company has contracted Ernst & Young ShinNihon
as its independent auditors and retained several legal offices
to provide legal counsel. Management receives advice from
legal counsel on issues related to company management and
day-to-day legal issues as necessary.
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Relationship Between the Audit Committee and Independent Auditors
1. Independent auditors report audit schedules to the Audit
Committee and report the results biannually.
2. The Audit Committee has the authority to determine the
details of the agenda regarding the appointment, dismissal,
and decision not to reappoint independent auditors. In addition, the committee has the authority to make an advance
approval of remuneration paid to independent auditors.
Relationship Between the Audit Committee and the
Internal Auditing Office
1. Internal auditing is conducted by the Internal Auditing
Office, which determines the status of the division’s operations by taking steps to ensure that controls are functional
in every operational process of each company division.
With the aim of realizing better operations and improving

results, the office systematically covers internal auditing
for a wide range of organizations in the Group, from the
Sales Division and the Business Division to work sites and
Group companies. In addition, the office creates an audit
plan in advance for each fiscal year and term. The office
conducts each audit upon receiving approval from the
president, the Audit Committee, and the executive officers
in charge of the operations to be covered by the audit,
and other items deemed critical in terms of the Company’s
auditing policies. The audit results are reported at the
Management Meeting and to the Audit Committee.
2. The Audit Committee receives reports from the Internal Auditing Office on the schedules and results of internal audits.
Support System for External Directors
1. The Board of Directors Office delivers information to external directors who are members of the Audit Committee
and provides assistance in their duties.
2. The Secretary’s Group delivers information to external
directors who are not members of the Audit Committee
and provides assistance in their duties.
2) Business Execution, Auditing, Supervision, Nominating
and Compensation
Business Execution
Executive officers have been granted broad-ranging decisionmaking authority by the Board of Directors. The Management
Meeting, comprised of senior vice presidents and executive
officers and above, and executive officers appointed by the
president, and meeting in principle twice a month, is consulted
on important matters, while matters of special importance (subject to deliberation) are reported to the Board of Directors.
Committees
1. The Nominating Committee (meets as needed)
The Nominating Committee formulates resolutions to appoint
or dismiss directors that are then presented at the stockholders’ meeting.
(Criteria for Appointment of Directors)
• In the selection of director nominees, the Nominating Committee gives advance consideration to external director candidates’ qualifications and prospective roles (e.g., committee
membership, concurrent position as executive officer).

2. The Audit Committee (meets once a month, in principle)
The Audit Committee audits the execution of duties by
directors and executive officers, and has authority related
to the appointment, dismissal or reappointment of independent auditors.
(Policies)
• The Audit Committee is dedicated to conducting highly
organized and efficient audits, with an emphasis on legal
compliance and appropriateness, in a fair and unbiased
manner consistent with the interests of stockholders and
the demands of society. The committee recognizes the
importance of its role in ensuring a good corporate governance structure, one that enables sound business operations for ensuring growth, and earning society’s trust.
• The Audit Committee puts emphasis on systemic audits,
such as those pertaining to monitoring of the Company’s
internal control system and risk management, and makes
full use of the Internal Auditing Office, independent auditors,
and other entities as appropriate in this endeavor.
• The Audit Committee strives to bolster ties with corporate
auditors of Group companies in an effort to create a more
comprehensive system for auditing the Group’s consolidated financial accounts.
3. The Compensation Committee (meets as needed)
The Compensation Committee determines the compensation to be received by each individual director and
executive officer.
(Policy)
• The Compensation Committee decides the appropriate
scope of compensation with due consideration given to
economic conditions and the duties to be performed.
4. Other committees
• We have established various other committees to
strengthen other internal auditing functions. These committees include the Information Security Committee and
the Self-assessment Committee.
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Board of Directors

Takashi Kawamura

Masaharu Sumikawa

Shiro Kawakami

Naotaka Murasumi

Masahiro Hayashi

Toshiyuki Takaoka

Naoyoshi Murata

Takaaki Tachibana

Chairman of the Board

Directors

* Takashi Kawamura (1) (3)

Masaharu Sumikawa (1) (3)
* Shiro Kawakami (2)
* Naotaka Murasumi (2)
* Masahiro Hayashi (1) (2) (3)
Toshiyuki Takaoka
Naoyoshi Murata
Takaaki Tachibana
Numbers in parentheses beside names show committee membership
(italic numbers show committee chairmen):
(1) Nominating Committee
(2) Audit Committee
(3) Compensation Committee
Directors marked with an asterisk are external directors.
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Executive Officers

Masaharu Sumikawa

Toshiyuki Takaoka

Naoyoshi Murata

Yoshiaki Kobayashi

Shuzo Hanamura

Shinjiro Ueda

Junichiro Hashimoto

Takaaki Tachibana

Tatsuya Suzuki

Representative Executive Officer
President and Chief Executive Officer

Masaharu Sumikawa
Representative Executive Officers
Executive Vice Presidents and Executive Officers

Toshiyuki Takaoka
Naoyoshi Murata
Senior Vice Presidents and Executive Officers

Yoshiaki Kobayashi
Shuzo Hanamura
Shinjiro Ueda

Kazuhiko Yamaguchi

Akira Maeda

Hiroshi Misumi

Vice Presidents and Executive Officers

Junichiro Hashimoto
Takaaki Tachibana
Tatsuya Suzuki
Kazuhiko Yamaguchi
Akira Maeda
Hiroshi Misumi
Executive Officers

Yoichi Saruwatari
Shozo Kumagai
Hideoki Nakano
Yoshinori Shimauchi
Masahiro Yamamoto
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Financial Section
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview of Fiscal Year 2007
During the year ended March 31, 2008, the U.S. economy
slowed, increasing downside risks due to the subprime
mortgage problem. Economic expansion continued in Asia,
most notably in China, with capital investment continuing to
grow substantially. Japan also experienced a modest recovery
supported by improved corporate earnings. However, in
recent months, weak corporate earnings, flat capital investment and sluggish public investment, created a harsh
domestic operating environment for the Hitachi Plant
Technologies Group.
Fiscal year 2007 was the second year of the medium-term
management plan formulated by the Company, covering fiscal
years 2006 to 2010. During the term, we made progress in
improving productivity through standardization of working
methods and products, shortening lead times, and reducing
procurement costs by conducting more centralized, combined procurement and sourcing more materials internationally. In our overseas operations, we are making an effort to
attract more orders from the Middle East and Asia. In order
to further bolster our water treatment and environmental
businesses, we established an Environmental Preservation &
Water Treatment Group and are working to rationalize the
business through the reorganization of our subsidiaries.
As a result of the foregoing, the total order value was
¥390.4 billion on increased orders in segments other than
industrial systems, where orders dropped significantly
compared with the large orders received in the previous
year. Overall net sales increased to ¥398.3 billion as a
result of a revision in the scope of work-in-progress
accounting methods.
In terms of profitability, the volume of work decreased
due to a shrinking public sector market in Japan and a greater
emphasis on profitable orders, leading to a shortfall in fixed
costs recovery. In addition, construction project sales were
concentrated toward the end of the fiscal year, profitability
was hurt by greater-than-expected downward pressures on
sale prices from intensified competition, increased material
and labor costs, and additional costs stemming from performance defects. Furthermore, the Company was forced
to increase the provision for allowances for losses on construction contracts, reflecting new orders for large projects.
As a result, we recorded an operating loss of ¥5.9 billion.
Despite extraordinary profit, including gains on the sale of
the Company’s Otsuka Building and the sale of certain businesses, the net loss was ¥6.7 billion, as these gains were
offset by a reversal of deferred tax assets at some of our
consolidated subsidiaries, as well as extraordinary losses
arising from the streamlining of Group operations, including
special retirement payments, head office relocation, and
integration of our Tokyo offices.
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Information by segment is provided below. Net sales for
individual segments exclude internal inter-segment sales and
transfers between accounts.
In fiscal year 2007, we reclassified environmental preservation systems as being a part of Social Infrastructure Systems.
These were previously included in Industrial Systems.
Social Infrastructure Systems
Net sales totaled ¥153.4 billion despite the effect of curbed
public investment and increasingly fierce price competition.
This was due to recovering capital investment in the private
sector and good performance for pumps and compressors,
primarily in the Middle East, China, and Southeast Asia.
There was an operating loss of ¥1.8 billion due to unprofitable projects caused by a drop in sales prices for public
projects, lower work volume caused by a shrinking of the
public sector market in Japan, and a greater emphasis on
profitable orders. As a result, the segment was unable to
fully recoup fixed costs.
Industrial Systems
This segment posted sales from large projects for material
handling systems for the electronics industry, as well as steady
support of industrial plant systems from private sector capital
investment. However, due to a decrease in orders for electronics industry manufacturing equipment, caused by a
temporary market contraction, this segment recorded net
sales of ¥101.5 billion. There was an operating loss of ¥4.9
billion due mainly to allowances for construction contract
losses, reflecting new orders for large-scale material handling
system projects. Furthermore, a drop in work volume from
order period extensions and a failure to win orders for large
industrial plant system projects resulted in the segment also
being unable to completely recoup fixed costs for the year.
Air Conditioning Systems
Net sales of ¥90.1 billion were strongly supported by
orders from the Middle East and Asia, while private sector
capital investment was robust for clean rooms in Japan.
Operating income was lower than the previous year, at
¥1.5 billion, largely as a result of additional costs rising
from installation defects.
Energy Systems
Net sales increased to ¥53.1 billion, based on sales derived
in Japan from operations such as maintenance inspections
of nuclear plants, sales booking of a large overseas thermal
power plant construction project and a revision in the scope
of work-in-progress accounting methods. Operating income
was higher than the previous year at ¥1.9 billion due to the
absence of compensation costs incurred for products with
variations, a significant factor in the previous fiscal year,

and an increase in work volumes enabling the recoupment
of fixed costs.
FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year
2007 were ¥20.0 billion, up ¥3.7 billion from the previous
fiscal year.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating activities provided net cash of ¥8.0 billion. The
principal source of cash from operating activities was from
the reduction of inventory.
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was ¥1.1 billion. Capital
expenditure totaled ¥7.0 billion, however, major transactions include a ¥3.5 billion gain from sale of the Otsuka
Building and other fixed assets, and ¥3.2 billion from the
transfer of businesses.
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Financing activity expenditure totaling ¥3.2 billion includes
¥2.3 billion in dividends paid to stockholders and ¥0.9
billion in long-term debt repayments.
Net assets at the end of the year were ¥103.7 billion, a
decrease of ¥9.5 billion compared to the previous year mainly
due to a net loss of ¥6.7 billion. The revised equity ratio of
30.5% reflects a decrease in total assets by ¥14.6 billion to
¥333.3 billion.

BASIC POLICY ON APPROPRIATION OF PROFITS AND
DIVIDENDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW
We consider our dividend policy, to pay an interim and a
year-end dividend, an important management issue. We aim
to return profits to shareholders while broadly keeping in mind
the two principles of maintaining and increasing a stable dividend, and securing retained earnings with an eye on strengthening the future management structure.
In accordance with this policy, we paid an interim dividend
of ¥6 per share in December of last year. However, due to
the poor results in the fiscal year under review, we did not
declare a year-end dividend.
With respect to retained earnings, we intend to actively
implement measures in order to work toward a recovery in
performance for the next fiscal year and thereafter.
Dividends for the coming fiscal year have not been declared.

BUSINESS AND OTHER RISKS
The following is a list of, but not all, potential risks facing the
Hitachi Plant Technologies Group in the course of its business
that could materially affect its business results and financial
position. Please note that some of the following risks describe
possible future events that are based on judgments made at
the end of the fiscal year under review.
1) Economic trends
2) Exchange rate fluctuations
3) Risks stemming from unprofitable projects
4) Product quality and liability
5) Development of new products
6) Overseas operations
7) Natural or other disasters
8) Unexpected events
(e.g. payment of damages from litigation)
9) Business realignment
Outlook for Fiscal Year 2008
For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, the Company
will place greater emphasis on accepting profitable orders
and streamlining business activities within the Hitachi Plant
Technologies Group. We expect this approach to see a
decrease in Social Infrastructure Systems orders, including
public sector projects, and Industrial Systems, some of which
have become unprofitable. As a result, overall order values
are likely to decrease 5.2% to ¥370.0 billion. The Company
also expects overall net sales to decrease 9.6% to ¥360.0
billion, on decreased sales in Social Infrastructure Systems
and Industrial Systems. In terms of profitability, there are
ongoing concerns regarding our work volumes and the
recoupment of fixed costs in the face of a shrinking public
sector market in Japan. However, by streamlining our business, eliminating unprofitable projects, making an effort to
reduce fixed costs, downsizing Group-wide personnel, and
being highly selective with regard to capital investment and
R&D expenditure, we forecast an operating profit of ¥5.5
billion, a ¥11.4 billion turnaround from the previous year.
Special retirement payments accompanying the implementation of an early retirement program will also affect profit.
Consequently, we expect to report a net loss of ¥2.0 billion,
an improvement of ¥4.7 billion from the previous fiscal year.
These projections are based on data currently available
and deemed reliable as of March 31, 2008. Actual results
may differ in the face of various uncertainties.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of Yen

Assets

2008

2008

2007

Current assets:
Cash (Note 4)

¥

8,369

¥

9,353

$

83,690

Trade receivables:
7,806

5,897

78,060

148,777

154,177

1,487,770

Inventories

82,219

97,184

822,190

Deferred tax assets (Note 7)

11,524

6,735

115,240

Deposit to Hitachi group cash management fund (Notes 4 and 6)

11,706

6,992

117,060

Other current asset

13,831

16,450

138,310

(305)

(301)

(3,050)

283,927

296,487

2,839,270

Notes
Accounts (Note 6)

Allowance for doubtful receivables
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment:
6,707

6,970

67,070

Buildings and structures

25,868

27,363

258,680

Machinery and equipment

46,794

46,593

467,940

119

766

1,190

1,574

1,691

15,740

81,062

83,383

810,620

(51,361)

(53,644)

(513,610)

29,701

29,739

297,010

Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

1,821

1,682

18,210

Investments in securities (Note 5)

4,093

6,022

40,930

Deferred tax assets (Note 7)

8,645

8,639

86,450

Other assets

5,389

5,690

53,890

(218)

(273)

(2,180)

19,730

21,760

197,300

¥333,358

¥347,986

$3,333,580

Land

Construction in progress
Other
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

Investments and other assets:

Allowance for doubtful receivables
Total investments and other assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of Yen

Liabilities and Net Assets

2008

2007

2008

¥ 18,000

¥ 18,000

$ 180,000

256

973

2,560

2,184

3,523

21,840

115,155

117,586

1,151,550

16,189

14,516

161,890

Current liabilities:
Short-term debt (Note 8)
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)
Trade payables:
Notes
Accounts
Accrued expenses

2,006

2,204

20,060

38,276

42,031

382,760

Allowance for losses on construction contracts

9,928

3,290

99,280

Other current liabilities

5,287

9,173

52,870

207,281

211,296

2,072,810

—

256

—

Accrued income taxes (Note 7)
Advances received (Note 6)

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt (Note 8)
Accrued retirement and severance benefits (Note 9)

20,901

21,293

209,010

Accrued retirement benefit for directors and executive officers

698

747

6,980

Other liabilities

775

1,101

7,750

229,655

234,693

2,296,550

Common stock (Note 10)

12,000

12,000

120,000

Capital surplus (Notes 10 and 11)

20,978

20,945

209,780

Retained earnings (Note 11)

69,625

78,677

696,250

(425)

(507)

(4,250)

102,178

111,115

1,021,780

1,334

2,180

13,340

Total liabilities
Net assets
Stockholders’ equity:

Treasury stock, at cost (Note 12)
Total stockholders’ equity
Valuation and translation adjustments:
Net unrealized holding gain on securities
Net unrealized holding gain on hedging derivatives
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total valuation and translation adjustments
Stock acquisition right (Note 18)
Minority interests
Total net assets

(90)

5

(900)

(1,774)

(1,790)

(17,740)

(530)

395

(5,300)

119

25

1,190

1,936

1,758

19,360

103,703

113,293

1,037,030

¥333,358

¥347,986

$3,333,580

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of Yen

2008

2007

2008

¥398,334

¥363,167

$3,983,340

Cost of sales

365,960

319,088

3,659,600

Gross profit

32,374

44,079

323,740

38,317

37,596

383,170

(5,943)

6,483

(59,430)

Interest income

172

115

1,720

Dividends income

102

98

1,020

2,877

109

28,770

990

2,123

9,900

4,141

2,445

41,410

Net sales (Note 6)

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Notes 15 and 18)
Operating income (loss)
Other income:

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other
Other expenses:
Interest expenses

208

165

2,080

Special termination benefits

2,836

126

28,360

Other

2,415

1,820

24,150

5,459

2,111

54,590

(7,261)

6,817

(72,610)

(782)

3,532

(7,820)

(6,479)

3,285

(64,790)

Minority interests

240

277

2,400

Net income (loss)

¥ (6,719)

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests
Income taxes (Note 7)
Income (loss) before minority interests

¥

3,008

Yen

Net income (loss) per share (Note 14)
Diluted net income per share (Note 14)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

(67,190)

U.S. dollars

¥(34.55)

¥15.50

$(0.35)

—

15.48

—

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Common
stock

Balance at March 31, 2006 ¥

Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

7,319 ¥ 10,132 ¥ 52,255

Treasury
stock,
at cost

Net
unrealized
holding
gain on
securities

¥ (693) ¥ 2,520

Net
unrealized
Foreign
holding gain
currency
Stock
on hedging translation acquisition Minority
derivatives adjustments
right
interests

¥

— ¥ (1,846) ¥

Total net
assets

— ¥ 1,313 ¥

71,000

Increase due to transfer
4,681

10,772

25,428

(0)

749

—

2

—

—

41,632

Cash dividends paid

—

—

(1,861)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(1,861)

Bonuses to directors

—

—

(153)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(153)

Net income

—

—

3,008

—

—

—

—

—

—

3,008

Purchases of treasury stock

—

—

—

(73)

—

—

—

—

—

(73)

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock

—

41

—

259

—

—

—

—

—

300

Net changes during the year

—

—

—

—

(1,089)

5

54

25

445

(560)

and merger (Note 3)

Balance at March 31, 2007

12,000

20,945

78,677

(507)

2,180

5

(1,790)

25

1,758

113,293

Cash dividends paid

—

—

(2,333)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(2,333)

Net loss

—

—

(6,719)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(6,719)

Purchases of treasury stock

—

—

—

(23)

—

—

—

—

—

(23)

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock

—

33

—

105

—

—

—

—

—

138

Net changes during the year

—

—

—

—

(846)

(95)

16

94

178

(653)

Balance at March 31, 2008

¥ 12,000 ¥ 20,978 ¥ 69,625 ¥ (425) ¥ 1,334

¥ (90) ¥ (1,774) ¥ 119 ¥ 1,936 ¥ 103,703

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Common
stock

Balance at March 31, 2007

Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock,
at cost

Net
unrealized
holding
gain on
securities

$120,000 $209,450 $ 786,770 $ (5,070) $ 21,800

Net
unrealized
Foreign
holding gain
currency
Stock
on hedging translation acquisition
derivatives adjustments
right

Minority
interests

Total net
assets

$ 50 $ (17,900) $ 250 $17,580 $1,132,930

Cash dividends paid

—

—

(23,330)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(23,330)

Net loss

—

—

(67,190)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(67,190)

Purchases of treasury stock

—

—

—

(230)

—

—

—

—

—

(230)

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock

—

330

—

1,050

—

—

—

—

—

1,380

Net changes during the year

—

—

—

—

(8,460)

(950)

160

940

1,780

(6,530)

Balance at March 31, 2008

$120,000 $209,780 $ 696,250 $(4,250) $13,340

$(900) $(17,740) $1,190 $19,360 $1,037,030

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of Yen

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) before income taxes and minority
interests to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Provision for doubtful receivables
Decrease in retirement and severance benefits
Interest and dividends income
Interest expenses
Foreign exchange loss
Equity in net income of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Decrease in advances received
Increase in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in consumption taxes payable
Other
Interest and dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investments in securities
Proceeds from sales of investments in securities
Purchase of investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
Payment for acquisition of business
Proceeds from transfer of business
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Purchases of treasury stock
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
Dividends paid to stockholders
Dividends paid to minority stockholders of subsidiaries
Payments of subsidies due to merger
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to transfer and merger
Increase in cash and cash equivalents of
newly consolidated subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 4)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2008

2007

2008

¥ (7,261)

¥ 6,817

$ (72,610)

5,109
(52)
(391)
(274)
208
26
(12)
3,070
14,437
(3,987)
(3,768)
1,503
(3,142)
5,770

4,185
(331)
(1,558)
(213)
165
1
(169)
(7,874)
(6,701)
15,123
(2,819)
681
1,050
(5,614)

51,090
(520)
(4,600)
(2,740)
2,080
260
(120)
30,700
144,370
(39,870)
(37,680)
15,030
(31,420)
58,390

11,236
274
(208)
(3,293)

2,743
217
(165)
(4,093)

112,360
2,740
(2,080)
(32,930)

8,009

(1,298)

80,090

(7,011)
3,597
(108)
589
(386)
(1,093)
3,221
10

(6,638)
497
(50)
1,541
—
—
—
(6)

(70,110)
35,970
(1,080)
5,890
(3,860)
(10,930)
32,210
100

(1,181)

(4,656)

(11,810)

—
(973)
(23)
138
(2,331)
(34)
—

12
(274)
(73)
300
(1,856)
(31)
(1,054)

—
(9,730)
(230)
1,380
(23,310)
(340)
—

(3,223)

(2,976)

(32,230)

(18)

33

(180)

3,587
16,333
—

(8,897)
19,782
5,448

35,870
163,330
—

155

—

1,550

¥20,075

¥16,333

$200,750

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. (the “Company”) and subsidiaries are prepared on
the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled from the consolidated financial statements prepared by the
Company as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.
In addition, for the convenience of readers outside Japan, the consolidated financial statements including the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, include certain reclassifications and additional information which are not required under accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.
(b) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and those of its effectively controlled subsidiaries. All of the significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries
and significant affiliates are stated at their underlying equity value, and the appropriate portion of the earnings of such companies is included
in consolidated net income (loss).
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with insignificant risk of changes in
value which have maturities of generally three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
(d) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided at an amount sufficient to cover probable losses on collection. It consists of the estimated
uncollectible amount with respect to certain identified doubtful receivables and an amount calculated using the actual percentage of the
Company’s historical collection losses.
(e) Investments in Securities
The Company accounts for investments in securities in accordance with “Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments” issued by the
Business Accounting Council. Under this standard, securities are to be classified into one of the following three categories and accounted
for as follows:
■ Securities that the Company holds with the objective of generating profits on short-term differences in price are classified as trading securities and measured at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses included in earnings.
■ Securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and measured
at amortized cost.
■ Securities classified as neither trading securities nor held-to-maturity securities are classified as available-for-sale securities and measured
at fair value, with either unrealized holding gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as net unrecognized holding gain (loss) in
a separate component of net assets until realized, or with unrealized holding losses included in earnings and unrealized gains excluded
from earnings and reported as unrecognized holding gains in a separate component of net assets until realized.
The Company measured available-for-sale securities at fair value and reported unrealized holding gains and losses as “Net unrealized
holding gain (loss) on securities” in a separate component of net assets. Available-for-sale securities without fair values are carried at cost. In
computing realized gain or loss, cost of available-for-sale securities was principally determined by the moving-average method.
(f) Inventories
Inventories other than materials and supplies are stated at cost, cost being determined by the specific identification method. Materials and
supplies are stated at lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the moving-average method.
(g) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets by the decliningbalance method, except for certain buildings which are depreciated by the straight-line method.
Effective April 1, 2007, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries changed their method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment acquired on or after April 1, 2007. This change was made based on the revised Corporation Tax Law.
As a result of application of the revised Corporate Tax Law, loss before income tax and minority interests for the year ended March 31,
2008 increased by ¥192 million ($1,920 thousand) compared to the previous method.
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Effective April 1, 2007, pursuant to the revised Corporate Tax Law, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have started to depreciate the 5% residual value of the acquisition cost of property, plant and equipment acquired on or before March 31, 2007. Among these
property, plant and equipment that have been depreciated to 5% of the acquisition cost are to be depreciated evenly over five years beginning from the following fiscal year.
As a result of application of the revised Corporate Tax Law, loss before income tax and minority interests for the year ended March 31,
2008 increased ¥209 million ($2,090 thousand) compared with the previous accounting treatment.
(h) Impairment of Fixed Assets
The Company accounts for impairments of fixed assets in accordance with “Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standards for
Impairments of Fixed Assets” issued by the Business Accounting Council. The opinion requires that an impairment loss be recognized where
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by such asset. The impairment loss
is measured at an amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount being higher of discounted future net
cash flows or net realizable value.
(i) Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method in accordance with “Accounting Standards for Deferred
Income Taxes” issued by the Business Accounting Council. Under the asset and liability method of the standard, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation
allowance is provided for the amount that is not considered to be recoverable.
(j) Allowance for Product Warranties
The allowance for product warranties is estimated and recorded at the time of sale to provide for future potential costs, such as costs related
to after-sales services, at amounts considered to be appropriate based on the Companies’ past experience.
(k) Allowance for Losses on Construction Contracts
The allowance for losses on construction contracts is provided in an amount sufficient to cover probable losses on construction contracts on
hand when substantial losses in the future are anticipated and can be reasonably estimated.
(l) Retirement and Severance Benefits
The Company accounts for its obligations to provide retirement and severance benefits in accordance with “Accounting Standards for
Retirement and Severance Benefits” issued by the Business Accounting Council. Under this standard, retirement and severance benefits for
employees are accrued based on the estimated retirement benefit obligation and the pension assets. Prior service cost and actuarial gains
or losses are amortized over the average remaining service periods.
(m) Retirement Benefit for Directors and Executive Officers
Provision has been made in the accompanying balance sheets for the estimated accrued liability of retirement benefit for directors and executive officers based on management’s policy.
(n) Revenue Recognition
The Company applies the percentage-of-completion method for certain long-term construction contracts, of which the construction period
is more than one year and the contract amount is more than ¥1 billion.
Effective April 1, 2007, the Company changed its accounting policy for the scope of the percentage-of-completion method to the current scope of long-term construction contracts. Previously, the scope had been more than two years and the contract amount was more
than ¥5 billion. This change was made due to the fact that the sizes of construction contracts are becoming smaller reflective of a change in
economic conditions, and it is considered to continue.
As a result of this change, sales for the year ended March 31, 2008 increased by ¥27,802 million ($278,020 thousand) and loss
before income tax and minority interests decreased by ¥2,809 million ($28,090 thousand), respectively, compared with the previous
accounting treatment.
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(o) Translation of Foreign Currency Accounts
The Company accounts for foreign currency transactions and translates financial statements of foreign subsidiaries in accordance with
“Accounting Standards for Foreign Currency Transaction” issued by the Business Accounting Council. Under this standard, foreign currency
transactions are translated into yen on the basis of the rates in effect at the transaction date. Foreign currency transactions, for which firm
forward exchange contracts are held, are translated into yen at such contract rates, only if the relation between foreign currency transactions
and related firm forward exchange contracts meets the criteria of hedge accounting as regulated in “Accounting Standards for Financial
Instruments.” At year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into yen at the rates of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date, except for those, as described above, translated at related contract rates. Gains or losses resulting from
the translation of foreign currencies, including gains and losses on settlement, are credited or charged to income as incurred.
The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into the reporting currency of yen as follows: all assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date; net assets accounts are translated at historical rates; income
and expenses are translated at an average of exchange rates in effect during the year; and a comprehensive adjustment resulting from translation of assets, liabilities and net assets is reported as “Foreign currency translation adjustments,” a separate component of net assets.
(p) Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company accounts for derivative financial statements in accordance with “Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments” issued by
the Business Accounting Council. Under this standard, in principle, net assets or liabilities arising from derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses included in earnings. Hedging transactions, which meet the criteria of hedge accounting as regulated in “Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments,” are accounted for using deferral hedge accounting, which requires the
unrealized gains or losses to be deferred as an asset or liability until gains or losses relating to the hedge objects are recognized.
(q) Lease
Finance lease except for those where the legal title of the underlying property is transferred from the lessor to the lessee at the end of the
lease term, is accounted for as operating lease.
(r) Treasury Stock
The Company accounts for treasury stocks in accordance with Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASB) Statement No. 1, “Accounting
Standards for Treasury Shares and Appropriation of Legal Reserve.” Under this standard, treasury stock is recorded at cost as a deduction
of net assets. When the Company reissues the treasury stock, the difference between the issuance price and the cost of the treasury stock
is accounted for as capital surplus.
(s) Stock Options
Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted ASB Statement No. 8, “Accounting Standards for Share-based Payment.” Under this standard, a stock option expense is recognized for the options granted to directors, executive officers and certain employees, over the requisite
service period. Until stock options are exercised or expired, the amount corresponding to the expenses is reported as “Stock acquisition
right,” a separate component of net assets.
As a result of the application of this standard, income before income taxes and minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2007
decreased by ¥25 million ($212 thousand) compared with the previous accounting treatment.
(t) Bonuses to Directors
Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted ASB Statement No. 4, “Accounting Standards for Directors’ Bonus.” Under this standard,
bonuses to directors are recognized as expenses instead of appropriations of retained earnings.
As a result of the application of this standard, income before income taxes and minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2007
decreased by ¥190 million ($1,610 thousand) compared with the previous accounting treatment.
(u) Net Assets
Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted ASB Statement No. 5, “Accounting Standards for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance
Sheet” and the revised ASB Statement No. 1, “Accounting Standards for Treasury Shares and Appropriation of Legal Reserve.” Under these
standards, the balance sheet comprises the assets, liabilities and net assets sections. The net assets section comprises four subsections,
which are stockholders’ equity, valuation and translation adjustments, stock options and minority interests.
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The net assets section includes items which were not included in the previously presented stockholders’ equity section. The valuation
and translation adjustments section includes net unrealized holding gain on hedging derivatives. Minority interests were presented between
liabilities and the previously presented stockholders’ equity.
If this standard had not been adopted and the previously presentation method for the stockholders’ equity had been applied, the stockholders’ equity at March 31, 2007, which comprised common stock, capital surplus, retained earnings, net unrealized holding gain on securities, foreign currency translation adjustments and treasury stock, would have been ¥111,505 million ($944,958 thousand).
(v) Per Share Data
The Company calculates per share information in accordance with ASB Statement No. 2, “Accounting Standards for Earnings Per Share.”
Under this standard, basic net income per share is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each year. Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of
common stock.
(w) Business Combination
Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted “Accounting Standards for Business Combinations” issued by the Business Accounting
Council and ASB Statement No. 7, “Accounting Standards for Business Divestitures.”
(x) Reclassifications
Certain reclassification has been made to the prior year financial statements to conform with the current year presentation.

2. Basis of Financial Statement Translation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥100=$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March
31, 2008. This translation should not be construed as a presentation that any amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. Integration among Hitachi Group Companies
On April 1, 2006, part of the Public & Municipal Systems Division (machinery-related systems business) and the majority of the Industrial
Systems Division in Hitachi, Ltd. (Hitachi)’s Industrial Systems were spun off and transferred to the Company. At the same time, Hitachi Kiden
Kogyo, Ltd. (Hitachi Kiden) and Hitachi Industries Co., Ltd. (Hitachi Industries), which are other subsidiaries of Hitachi, were merged into the
Company, and the name of the Company was changed into “Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.”
(a) Transfer of Spun off Divisions of Hitachi
The Company issued 11,591,000 shares of common stock to Hitachi in exchange for the transfer of the spun off divisions from Hitachi.
The amounts transferred to the Company at the integration date are as follows:
Millions
of yen

Total assets
Total liabilities

¥43,662
¥38,471

(b) Merger of the Other Two Hitachi Subsidiaries
The Company issued 66,168,797 shares of common stock to the stockholders of Hitachi Kiden and the stockholders of Hitachi Industries in
connection with the merger of the two companies.

■
■

The ratios for the issuance of the Company’s stocks are as follows:
0.93 shares of the Company common stock was issued for every 1 Hitachi Kiden common stock held.
13.40 shares of the Company common stock was issued for every 1 Hitachi Industries common stock held.
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The amounts merged into the Company at the integration date are as follows:
Millions
of yen

Hitachi Kiden
Total assets
Total liabilities
Hitachi Industries
Total assets
Total liabilities

¥28,182
16,016
82,014
¥60,851

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Reconciliations between consolidated balance sheet captions and cash and cash equivalents for consolidated statements of cash flows are
as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

2007

2008

Cash
Deposit to Hitachi group cash management fund
Time deposits with maturity over three months

¥ 8,369
11,706
—

¥ 9,353
6,992
(12)

$ 83,690
117,060
—

Cash and cash equivalents

¥20,075

¥16,333

$200,750

5. Investments in Securities
Investments in securities as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 are classified as available-for-sale securities. A summary of cost, unrealized holding
gross gains, unrealized holding gross losses and aggregate fair value by major type of securities is as follows:
Millions of yen
2008

Available-for-sale securities:
Equity securities

Cost

Gross
gains

¥1,840

¥2,274

2007
Gross
losses

Aggregate
fair value

Cost

Gross
gains

¥(21)

¥4,093

¥2,341

¥3,681

Gross
losses

Aggregate
fair value

—

¥6,022

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2008

Available-for-sale securities:
Equity securities

Cost

Gross
gains

Gross
losses

Aggregate
fair value

$18,400

$22,740

$(210)

$40,930

Equity securities include investments in non-marketable securities. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of investments in nonmarketable securities because of the lack of a market price and difficulty in estimating fair value without incurring excessive cost. The carrying amount of these equity securities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 totaled ¥666 million ($6,660 thousand) and ¥1,210 million, respectively.
The proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to ¥589 million
($5,890 thousand) and ¥1,541 million, respectively. The gross realized gain from the sale of those securities for the years ended March 31,
2008 and 2007 amounted to a gain of ¥50 million ($500 thousand) and a gain of ¥1,262 million, respectively.
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6. Balances and Transactions with Related Party
68.14% of the Company’s outstanding common stock is owned by Hitachi, Ltd. (the parent company). Balances and transactions with the
parent company as of and for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

Balances:
Accounts receivable
Deposit to Hitachi group cash management fund
Advances received
Transactions:
Sales

2008

2007

¥14,380
11,581
5,081

¥18,494
6,868
12,001

$143,800
115,810
50,810

¥44,938

¥47,149

$449,380

7. Income Taxes
Income tax expense attributable to income from operations for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 consist of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Current
Deferred

2008

2007

¥ 3,259
(4,041)

¥2,809
723

$ 32,590
(40,410)

2008

¥ (782)

¥3,532

$ (7,820)

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based on income. The aggregate of such income taxes
resulted in a normal income tax rate of 40.69% for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.
Reconciliations between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes and
minority interests are as follows:
Statutory tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Increase in valuation allowance
Tax basis of an investment in a subsidiary in excess of its financial reporting basis
Equity in net income of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
Other, net
Effective income tax rate
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2008

2007

40.69%
(7.40)
(34.21)
17.57
—
(5.88)

40.69%
8.65
—
—
(1.01)
3.48

10.77%

51.81%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2008
and 2007 are presented below:
Tax basis of an investment in a subsidiary in excess of its financial reporting basis
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

Total gross deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Accrued bonus
Accrued business tax
Retirement benefit for directors and executive officers
Retirement and severance benefits
Depreciation
Allowance for losses on construction contracts
Net loss carried forward
Others
   Subtotal
Valuation allowance
Total gross deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gain on securities
Others
Net deferred tax assets

¥

254
2,748
246
287
8,379
672
4,074
2,134
5,648

2008

2007

¥

234
3,099
246
415
8,557
639
1,319
—
2,728

$

2,540
27,480
2,460
2,870
83,790
6,720
40,740
21,340
56,480

24,442
(3,336)

17,237
(329)

244,420
(33,360)

21,106

16,908

211,060

(917)
(20)

(1,501)
(33)

(9,170)
(200)

(937)

(1,534)

(9,370)

¥20,169

¥15,374

$201,690

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets under the following captions:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

2007

2008

Other current assets
Other assets

¥11,524
8,645

¥ 6,735
8,639

$115,240
86,450

Net deferred tax assets

¥20,169

¥15,374

$201,690

8. Short-term and Long-term Debt
Short-term debt as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 represented unsecured bank borrowings on which weighted average interest rates were
1.08% and 0.91%, respectively.
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Loans from banks due 2008 to 2009 with interest rates from 1.60 to 2.24%
Less: portion due within one year

2008

2007

2008

¥ 256
(256)

¥1,229
(973)

$ 2,560
(2,560)

—

¥ 256

—
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9. Retirement and Severance Benefits
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have the following contributory and noncontributory pension plans to provide pension benefits
to substantially all employees:
■ Employees Pension Fund (funded defined benefit pension plan)
■ Tax Qualified Pension Plan (funded defined benefit pension plan)
■ Retirement and Severance Benefit Plan (unfunded defined benefit pension plan)
■ Defined Contribution Plan
The funded status of the Company and its subsidiaries’ pension plans as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

2007

2008

¥(57,516)
33,400

¥(56,951)
36,593

$(575,160)
334,000

(24,116)
7,262
(3,705)
(53)

(20,358)
3,250
(4,055)
—

(241,160)
72,620
(37,050)
(530)

Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

¥(20,612)

¥(21,163)

$(206,120)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:
Prepaid expenses
Retirement and severance benefits

¥

¥

$

Projected benefit obligation
Plan assets at fair value
Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial gain
Unrecognized prior service cost
Loss on transfer to defined contribution pension plan

289
(20,901)

¥(20,612)

130
(21,293)

¥(21,163)

2,890
(209,010)

$(206,120)

Net periodic benefit cost for the above plans of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007 consisted of the following components:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets for the period
Amortization of actuarial loss
Amortization of prior service cost
Net periodic benefit cost for defined benefit plans
Gain on transfer to defined contribution pension plan
Loss on termination of a retirement and severance benefit plan
Contributions to defined contribution pension plan
Total periodic benefit cost

2007

2008

¥ 2,463
1,413
(1,013)
601
(351)

¥2,333
1,402
(960)
495
(350)

$ 24,630
14,130
(10,130)
6,010
(3,510)

3,113
53
185
369

2,920
12
—
362

31,130
530
1,850
3,690

¥ 3,720

¥3,294

$ 37,200

Actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the Company and subsidiaries’ plan are principally as follows:
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
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2008

2007

2.0% – 2.5%
0.35% – 3.7%

2.0% – 2.5%
0.75% – 3.7%

10. Common Stock
The Japanese Commercial Code (JCC) had required that at least 50% of the issue price of new shares, with a minimum par value thereof,
was to be designated as stated capital. Proceeds in excess of the amount designated as stated capital are credited to capital surplus.
Effective October 1, 2001, the JCC was amended to eliminate the provision of common stock par value resulting in all common stock
being recorded with no par value. Under the amended JCC, at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is designated as stated capital,
and proceeds in excess of the amount designated as stated capital are credited to capital surplus.
Effective May 1, 2006, the Japanese Corporate Law (Corporate Law) became effective replacing the JCC.
On April 1, 2006, the Company issued 11,591,000 shares of common stock to Hitachi in exchange for the transfer of the spun off divisions from Hitachi. At the same time, the Company issued 66,168,797 shares of common stock to the stockholders of Hitachi Kiden and
the stockholders of Hitachi Industries in connection with the merger of the two companies.
The Company has been authorized for the issuance of 250,000,000 shares of common stock, and the total of issued shares as of
March 31, 2008 and 2007 are 195,590,898 and 195,590,898 shares, respectively.

11. Legal Reserve and Dividends
The JCC had provided that an amount equal to at least 10% of appropriations of retained earnings to be paid in cash, such as cash dividends and directors’ bonuses, be appropriated as a legal reserve until such reserve equals 25% of stated capital. This legal reserve was not
available for dividends but might be used to reduce a deficit by resolution of the stockholders’ meeting or might be transferred to capital by
resolution of the Board of Directors.
Effective October 1, 2001, the JCC was amended to require an amount of equal to at least 10% of appropriations of retained earnings
to be paid in cash be appropriated as a legal reserve until total of capital surplus and legal reserve equals 25% of stated capital. In addition
to a reduction of a deficit and transfer to stated capital, either capital surplus or legal reserve may be available for dividends by resolution of
the stockholders’ meeting to the extent that the amount of total capital surplus and legal reserve exceeds 25% of stated capital.
Effective May 1, 2006, the Corporate Law became effective replacing the JCC.
Cash dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve charged to retained earnings during the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007
represent dividends and directors’ bonuses paid out during those periods and the related appropriations to the legal reserve.

12. Treasury Stock
The JCC had imposed certain restrictions on acquisition and disposal of treasury stock.
Effective October 1, 2001, the JCC eliminated the provisions of these restrictions and allowed repurchase of treasury stock to the extent
of distributable funds appropriated by resolution of the stockholders’ meeting. Effective September 25, 2003, the JCC was further amended
to no longer require resolution of the stockholders’ meeting but resolution of the Board of Directors to the extent that the Board of Directors’
authority is stated in the articles of incorporation. At the ordinary general stockholders’ meeting held in June 2004, the Company approved
the amendment of the related provisions of the articles of incorporation.
Effective May 1, 2006, the Corporate Law became effective replacing the JCC.
The stockholders may request the Company to repurchase their shares less than a trading unit (1,000 shares) and to sell treasury stock
until their shares become a trading unit (1,000 shares) upon request pursuant to the provision of the Corporate Law. The shares less than a
trading unit cannot be publicly traded and do not carry a voting right.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
It is common practice in Japan for companies, in the ordinary course of business, to receive promissory notes in the settlement of trade
accounts receivable and subsequently discount such notes to banks or transfer them by endorsement to suppliers in the settlement of
accounts payable. The Company and its subsidiaries were contingently liable for discounted trade notes amounting to ¥100 million ($1,000
thousand) at March 31, 2008 and ¥100 million at March 31, 2007, respectively, and endorsed trade notes amounting to ¥15 million ($150
thousand) at March 31, 2008 and ¥3 million at March 31, 2007, respectively.
In addition, the Company was contingently liable for its guarantee obligation on bank loans of a joint venture amounting to ¥3,279 million
($32,790 thousand) at March 31, 2008 and ¥5,510 million at March 31, 2007, respectively.
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14. Net Income per Share Information
Net income per share computations for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares on which basic net income per share is calculated
Weighted average number of potentially dilutive securities

2008

2007

194,486,755
—

194,090,223
227,204

—

194,317,427

Weighted average number of shares on which diluted net income per share is calculated

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

2007

Net income
Appropriations for directors’ bonuses

¥(6,719)
—

¥3,008
—

$(67,190)
—

Net income available to common stockholders

¥(6,719)

¥3,008

$(67,190)

Yen

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

2008

U.S. dollars

2008

2007

¥(34.55)
—

¥15.50
¥15.48

2008

$(0.35)
—

15. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses charged to income for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to ¥5,101 million
($51,010 thousand) and ¥5,588 million, respectively.

16. Lease
Financial leases other than those which are deemed to transfer the ownership of the leased assets to the lessees are generally accounted
for by the same method as that applicable to operating leases.
Lessee
The amounts corresponding to acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

2007

2008

Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation

¥2,144
(806)

¥1,805
(676)

$21,440
(8,060)

Net book value

¥1,338

¥1,129

$13,380

The obligations under the finance leases at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Millions of yen
2008

Due within one year
Due after one year
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2007

2008

¥ 413
939

¥ 348
791

$ 4,130
9,390

¥1,352

¥1,139

$13,520

Total lease expense and the amounts corresponding to depreciation under the finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Lease expense
Depreciation
Interest expense

2008

2007

2008

¥441
¥418
¥ 18

¥373
¥359
¥ 15

$4,410
$4,180
$ 180

The obligations under operating leases at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Due within one year
Due after one year

2008

2007

¥39
5

¥41
34

2008

$390
50

¥44

¥75

$440

Lessor
The amounts corresponding to acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2008

2007

2008

Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation

¥ 323
(311)

¥ 339
(319)

$ 3,230
(3,110)

Net book value

¥ 12

¥ 20

$

120

The obligations under the finance leases at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Due within one year
Due after one year

2008

2007

¥65
27

¥ 87
91

2008

$650
270

¥92

¥178

$920

Total lease income and the amounts corresponding to depreciation under the finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Lease income
Depreciation

2008

2007

¥87
¥ 7

¥85
¥24

2008

$870
$ 70

17. Financial Instruments
The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to market risks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company
and its subsidiaries entered into forward exchange contract for the purpose of hedging these risk exposures. Forward exchange contracts
are utilized to manage foreign currency exchange rate risk from receivables, payables and forecasted transactions which are denominated in
foreign currency.
The Company has no derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. In addition, the Company may be exposed to losses in the
event of nonperformance by counterparties to financial instruments, but it is not expected that any counterparties will fail to meet their obligations, because most of the counterparties are authentic financial institutions. The Company has also developed hedging policies to control
various aspects of derivative financial transactions including authorization levels, transaction volumes and counterparty credit guidelines.
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The notional amount, estimated fair values and unrealized gains (losses) of the derivative financial instruments other than those
accounted for using deferral hedge accounting as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Millions of yen
2008
Notional
amounts

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currency
To buy foreign currency

Estimated
fair values

2007
Unrealized
gains
(losses)

Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Unrealized
gains
(losses)

—
¥122

—
¥109

—
¥(13)

¥44
¥41

¥48
¥42

¥(4)
¥1

—

—

¥(13)

—

—

¥(3)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2008

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currency
To buy foreign currency

Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Unrealized
gains
(losses)

—
$1,220

—
$1,090

—
$(130)

—

—

$(130)

18. Stock Options
The company has four stock option plans granted to directors, executive officers and certain employees stock options. The stock options
for which an expense is recognized are as follows:
Date of the resolution of the Board of Directors
Number of grantees
Class and number of stock
Grant date of stock options
Requisite service period
Exercise period
Exercise price
Fair value per unit on the grant date
Valuation method

November 27, 2006
Directors and executive officers
30
Employees
59
Common stock
1,255,000
December 26, 2006
December 26, 2006, to November 30, 2008
December 1, 2008, to June 30, 2011
665
119
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model

Stock option expenses charged to income for the year ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to ¥94 million ($940 thousand) and
¥25 million, respectively.
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19. Segment Information
Business Segment Information
The Company and its subsidiaries’ business segments are “Social infrastructure systems,” “Industrial systems,” “Air conditioning systems,”
and “Energy systems.”
Business segment information for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2008

Social
infrastructure
systems

Industrial
systems

Air
conditioning
systems

Energy
systems

Subtotal

Net sales:
Outside customers
Intersegment

¥153,487
346

¥101,524
312

¥90,152
448

¥53,171
316

¥398,334
1,422

Operating expenses

153,833
155,671

101,836
106,783

90,600
89,074

53,487
51,496

(1,838)

(4,947)

1,526

114,246
2,260
¥ 3,306

70,051
1,038
¥ 1,660

69,820
144
¥
84

Operating profit
Total assets
Depreciation
Capital investments

Eliminations

¥

Consolidated

—
(1,422)

¥398,334
—

399,756
403,024

(1,422)
1,253

398,334
404,277

1,991

(3,268)

(2,675)

(5,943)

35,729
369
¥ 433

289,846
3,811
¥ 5,483

43,512
1,298
¥ 1,528

333,358
5,109
¥ 7,011

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2007

Social
infrastructure
systems

Industrial
systems

Air
conditioning
systems

Energy
systems

Subtotal

Net sales:
Outside customers
Intersegment

¥140,388
559

¥102,837
626

¥87,219
25

¥32,723
150

¥363,167
1,360

Operating expenses

140,947
137,154

103,463
100,789

87,244
83,531

32,873
33,541

3,793

2,674

3,713

126,527
1,720
¥ 3,275

79,020
823
¥ 1,345

69,529
139
¥ 189

Operating profit
Total assets
Depreciation
Capital investments

Eliminations

¥

Consolidated

—
(1,360)

¥363,167
—

364,527
355,015

(1,360)
1,669

363,167
356,684

(668)

9,512

(3,029)

6,483

34,501
359
¥ 339

309,577
3,041
¥ 5,148

38,409
1,144
¥ 1,490

347,986
4,185
¥ 6,638

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2008

Social
infrastructure
systems

Net sales:
Outside customers
Intersegment
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Total assets
Depreciation
Capital investments

Industrial
systems

Air
conditioning
systems

Energy
systems

Subtotal

$1,534,870
3,460

$1,015,240
3,120

$901,520
4,480

$531,710
3,160

$3,983,340
14,220

1,538,330
1,556,710

1,018,360
1,067,830

906,000
890,740

534,870
514,960

(18,380)

(49,470)

15,260

1,142,460
22,600
$ 33,060

700,510
10,380
$ 16,600

698,200
1,440
$
840

Eliminations

Consolidated

$

—
(14,220)

$3,983,340
—

3,997,560
4,030,240

(14,220)
12,530

3,983,340
4,042,770

19,910

(32,680)

(26,750)

(59,430)

357,290
3,690
$ 4,330

2,898,460
38,110
$ 54,830

435,120
12,980
$ 15,280

3,333,580
51,090
$ 70,110
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Geographic Segment Information
Sales and assets of the domestic companies exceeded 90% of total segment sales and assets, respectively.
Overseas Sales
Export sales of the domestic companies and foreign subsidiaries’ sales other than sales to Japan are summarized as follows:
2008

Overseas sales:
Asia
Other areas

2008

2007

Millions
of yen

Percentage
of net sales

Millions
of yen

Percentage
of net sales

Thousands
of U.S. dollars

¥51,160
35,969

12.8%
9.1%

¥54,493
21,450

15.0%
5.9%

$511,600
359,690

¥87,129

21.9%

¥75,943

20.9%

$871,290

20. Subsequent Events
(a) Transfer of a part of employee defined benefit plans to a defined contribution plan
Effective April 1, 2008, the Company and certain domestic subsidiaries transferred a part of an employees pension plan, tax qualified pension plan, and retirement and severance benefit plan to a defined contribution plan.
As a result of such transfer, a gain of ¥422 million ($4,220 thousand) will be recognized as other income for the year ending March 31, 2009.
(b) Early Retirement Program
The Company and certain domestic subsidiaries announced adoption of an early retirement program (Application period: From March 25,
2008 to April 28, 2008) to improve the company’s business performance.
As a result, 271 employees applied the program in the application period. The company recognized related severance benefit of ¥2,794
million ($27,940 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2008 with respect to those who applied to the program by March 31, 2008. For the
remaining applications, the company will recognize related severance benefit of ¥1,767 million for the year ending March 31, 2009.
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MONOZUKURI
Engineering
Division

Milestones

Hitachi Plant Engineering &
Construction Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Kiden Kogyo, Ltd.

Founded as Tokyo Tsukudajima
Machine Factory
Changed company name to Kuhara Mining
Industry Co., Ltd. Tsukudajima Factory

1907
1912
1915

Founded as Ajikawa Ironworks
Kuhara Mining Industry Co., Ltd. was
integrated in Hitachi, Ltd. and founded
Kameido Factory
Changed company name to
Hitachi Kameido Factory
Founded Hitachi Kasado Factory

1918
1920
1921
1929
1935

Founded as Kyousei-gumi Co., Ltd.
Transferred stocks to Hitachi, Ltd. to
be integrated in the Hitachi Group

1936
1937
1938
1940

Changed company name to Ajikawa Co., Ltd.
Hitachi, Ltd. Amagasaki Factory
Founded Hitachi Kameari Factory
Changed company name to Hitachi
Construction Co., Ltd.

1945

Founded Hitachi Kawasaki Factory
Hitachi Construction Co., Ltd.
Amagasaki Factory
Founded Hitachi Kiden Kogyo, Ltd.
by spinning-off from Hitachi Construction
Co., Ltd. Amagasaki Factory

1949
1956

Started production of chemical equipment
at Hitachi Kasado Factory

1957
1959
1968
1970
1971

Founded Keihin Hitachi Engineering Co., Ltd.
Changed company name to Hitachi
Plant Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka
Securities Exchange market Second Section
Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka
Securities Exchange market First Section

Listed on Osaka Securities Exchange
market Second Section

Changed company name from Keihin
Hitachi Engineering Co., Ltd. to Hitachi
Industrial Machine Engineering Co., Ltd.
Consolidated Hitachi Kameari Factory
and Kawasaki Factory to establish
Tsuchiura Factory
Hitachi Kiko Kogyo, Ltd. was merged with
Hitachi Industrial Machine Engineering Co.,
Ltd., and founded Hitachi Technoengineering Ltd.
Founded Hitachi Techno-engineering
Ryugasaki Factory

1972
1974

1985
1990
1997
1998

Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange
market Second Section
Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka
Securities Exchange market First Section
Changed organization name from
Hitachi, Ltd. Tsuchiura and Kasado Factory
to Hitachi, Ltd. Power & Industrial System
Group Tsuchiura and Kasado Office.
Changed organization name from Hitachi,
Ltd. Power & Industrial System Group
Tsuchiura Office to Industrial Machinery
System Division
Consolidated Hitachi, Ltd. Industrial
Machinery System Division and Hitachi
Techno-engineering Ltd. to establish
Hitachi Industries Co., Ltd.

1999

2001

2006

Hitachi, Ltd.*
Hitachi Industries Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Plant Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. absorbed a part of Hitachi, Ltd.’s Industrial Systems Group while merging Hitachi Kiden
Kogyo, Ltd. and Hitachi Industries Co., Ltd. Hitachi Plant Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. was the surviving company, and changed its
name to Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.

* The above-cited milestones are limited to the scope related to the current business consolidation.		
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Global network
(As of July 1, 2008)

MAJOR OVERSEAS OFFICES
< > Country/Region ( ) Area Code [ ] Country/Region

[ Asia/Oceania ]
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Australia Branch
P. O. Box 153 Collie, WA 6225 [Australia]
Telephone: <61> (8) 9734-2700
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Hanoi Representative Office
12A01 Viglacera Tower No.1 Lang Hoa Lac Street,
Me Tri Commune, Tu Liem District, Hanoi [Vietnam]
Telephone: <84> (4) 553-7100
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Mumbai Branch Office
Balarama Building 2nd Floor No.206, Plot No.C-3,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East Mumbai 400 051 [India]
Telephone: <91> (22) 2659-1017
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Philippine Branch
21st Floor 6788 Ayala Avenue, Oledan Square, Makati City,
1226 [Philippines]
Telephone: <63> (2) 814-0804
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Representative Office of Indonesia
16th Floor Menara Bank Danamon, J1. Prof. Dr.Satrio Kav. E IV
No.6 Mega Kuningan, Jakarta 12950 [Indonesia]
Telephone: <62> (21) 5799-2201/02
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Shanghai Representative Office
Room No.2307, Rui jin Bilding, 205 Maoming Nan-Lu,
Shanghai, 200020 [China]
Telephone: <86> (21) 6472-1230
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Singapore Branch Office
401 Commonwealth Drive # 04-02, Har Par Techno Centre,
Singapore 149598 [Singapore]
Telephone: <65> 6222-0665
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Sri Lanka Branch Office
11/2, Arcadia Gardens, Rosmead Place,
Colombo 7 [Sri Lanka]
Telephone: <94> 11-2698949
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Taipei Branch
Room A, 3F., No.156, Sec.3, Minsheng E.Rd.,
Songshan District, Taipei City 105 [Taiwan]
Telephone: <886> (2) 2713-5008
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Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Vietnam Representative Office
3, 11A, e.town Building, 364 Cong Hoa Street,
Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh City [Vietnam]
Telephone: <84> (8) 812-7900-02

[ Middle East/Africa ]
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Abu Dhabi
Flat No.503, Al Khaily Building, Salaam Street,
Abu Dhabi [U.A.E.]
Telephone: <971> (2) 645-0442
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Dubai Branch
Albwardy Building 3rd Floor (3C),
Khalid Bid Waleed Street (Bank Street),
P. O. Box 62438, Dubai [U.A.E.]
Telephone: <971> (4) 352-2388
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Egypt Branch
1 Fakher Tower, Cornishe El-Nil Maadi, Cairo [Egypt]
Telephone: <20> (2) 2525-6845
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Qatar Office
Atrium Design Building, 2nd Floor, Al Salwa Road
P. O. Box 24801, Doha [Qatar]
Telephone: <974> 468-3806
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Saudi Arabia Branch
Al Olaya Center Office No.102, Makkah Road,
West Khobar, Al-Khobar [Saudi Arabia]
Telephone: <966> (3) 896-1462

[ Europe ]
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
London Office
83 Baker Street, London, W1U 6LA [UK]
Telephone: <44> (0) 20-7034-7375

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES
[ ] Country/Region

[ Domestic ]
Hitachi Plant Construction & Services Co., Ltd.
20-3, Ebisu 4-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-6033 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 5424-2121

Nico Technos Co., Ltd.
405-3, Yoshinocho 1-chome, Kita-ku, Saitama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
331-0811 [Japan]
Telephone: (048) 667-1467

Hitachi Nico Transmission Co., Ltd.
405-3, Yoshinocho 1-chome, Kita-ku, Saitama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture 331-0811 [Japan]
Telephone: (048) 652-6969

Hokkaido Eco Recycle Systems Co., Ltd.
6-269, Aza Kashiwabara, Tomakomai City, Hokkaido
059-1362 [Japan]
Telephone: 0144-53-9307

Tokyo Eco Recycle Co., Ltd.
38, Wakasu, Koto-ku, Tokyo 136-0083 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 3522-6690

[ Overseas ]

Hitachi Plant Techno Co., Ltd.
1-2, Kandasurugadai 3-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
101-0062 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 3233-3257
Hitachi Plant Construction TEC Co., Ltd.
32-22, Higashi-Ikebukuro 2-chome, Toshima-ku, Tokyo
170-0013 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 3983-6351
Hitachi Technologies and Services, Ltd.
603, Kandatsu-machi, Tsuchiura-shi, Ibaraki Prefecture
300-0013 [Japan]
Telephone: (029) 831-4158
Nichiwa Sougou Setsubi Co., Ltd.
32-22, Higashi-Ikebukuro 2-chome, Toshima-ku, Tokyo
170-0013 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 3989-0961
Hitachi Plant Construction Soft Co., Ltd.
5-2, Higashi-Ikebukuro 4-chome, Toshima-ku, Tokyo
170-8466 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 5928-8950
Hitachi Plant Mechanics Co., Ltd.
794, Higashitoyoi, Kudamatsu City, Yamaguchi Prefecture
744-0002 [Japan]
Telephone: (0833) 41-3080
Hitachi Plant System Engineering Co., Ltd.
53-11, Minami-Otsuka 3-chome, Toshima-ku, Tokyo
170-0005 [Japan]
Telephone: (03) 3988-1791
Sanki Technos Co., Ltd.
2-904-62, Hayama, Kudamatsu City, Yamaguchi Prefecture
744-0061 [Japan]
Telephone: (0833) 47-2600

Hitachi Plant Engineering & Construction (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
10th Floor, Jiacheng Mansion, 128 Jinjihu Road,
Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou, 215021 [China]
Telephone: <86> (512) 6288-2700
HPC VENEZUELA C.A.
UD-502 Calle, Arboleda Zona Industrial Matanzas, Pto. Ordaz,
Edo. Bolivar [Venezuela]
Telephone: <58> (286) 994-0726
PHPC CO., LTD. INC.
11th Floor 6788 Ayala Avenue, Oledan Square, Makati City
[Philippines]
Telephone: <63> (2) 886-6974
JIAXING TIANRI PLANT TECHNOLOGIES Co., Ltd.
No.1, Yatai Road, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang [China]
Telephone: <86> (573) 8258-5722
Nanjing Hitachi Techno. Co., Ltd.
1/F, No.118, Haifuxiang, Nanjng, 210007 [China]
Telephone: <86> (25) 8423-6788
HITACHI ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY
(YIXING) CO., LTD.
1st Block, Manufacturing Zone, Yuedong RD, Industrial park for
Environmental Science & Technology Yixing, Jiangsu, 214205
[China]
Telephone: <86> (510) 8707-3500
Hitachi Operation & Maintenance-Egypt S.A.E.
25, Omar Ibn El-Khattab St. Off Nady El-Seid St.12311
Dokki - Giza [Egypt]
Telephone: <20> (2) 762-6601
Hitachi Pump Manufacture (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.
No.7 Hongyun Road, Hongshan Town New District Wuxi, Jiangsu,
214145 [China]
Telephone: <86> (510) 8025-7000

Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd. Annual Report 2008

53

Stock Information
(As of March 31, 2008)

Shares of common stock authorized: 250,000,000
Shares of common stock issued:

195,590,898

Paid-in capital:

¥12,000,000,000

Number of stockholders:

13,863

Composition of stockholders
Number of
stockholders

Corporate (excluding financial institutions and securities companies)

136,710,802

69.90

69

11,801,977

6.03

13,458

40,126,464

20.52

71

6,951,655

3.55

13,863

195,590,898

100.00

Number of
shares held

Stockholding
(%)

Foreign stockholders
Total

Stockholding
(%)

265

Financial institutions and securities companies
Individuals and others

Number of
shares held

Major stockholders
Company

Hitachi, Ltd.

133,276,584

68.51

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

2,994,250

1.54

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.

1,879,000

0.97

Hitachi Plant Technologies Employees’ Stockholding Association

1,674,519

0.86

Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd.

1,575,000

0.81

Goldman Sachs International

1,411,540

0.73

Nippon Life Insurance Company

1,283,547

0.66

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

1,165,448

0.60

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.

946,000

0.49

The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company

634,545

0.33

Note: Stockholding is calculated after deducting 1,049,410 shares of treasury stock from the total number of issued shares.

Stock price and trading volume
Trading volume
(Thousand shares)
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Note: The graph shows the high and low stock prices and trading volumes on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Overview
(As of March 31, 2008)

Company name
Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.
Date of establishment
June 10, 1929
Head office
5-2, Higashi-Ikebukuro 4-chome, Toshima-ku,
Tokyo 170-8466, Japan
Securities code
1970
Number of employees
7,487 (consolidated)

Investor Information

Fiscal year-end

Administrative offices

March 31

The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Company, Limited
Headquarters and branch offices

General meeting of stockholders
June

Stock listings
Tokyo, Osaka

Public notices
Public notices will be posted electronically on the Company’s

For further information, please contact

website. In the event of accidents or other circumstances that

Hitachi Plant Technologies, Ltd.

prevent electronic postings, public notices will be announced

Corporate Communication Division, IR Group

in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun.

5-2, Higashi-Ikebukuro 4-chome, Toshima-ku,
Tokyo 170-8466, Japan

Transfer agent

Tel: +81-3-5928-8100

Tokyo Securities Transfer Agent Co., Ltd.

IR website: http://www.hitachi-pt.com/ir

6-2, Otemachi 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo 100-0004, Japan
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